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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPOR-'I" _ : A ’

The directors present an overview of ScottlshPower Energy Management L|m|ted s business structure, 2018 performance -
and strategac outlaok mcludmg prmcrpal risks and uncertainties. : .

_STRATEGIC OUTLOOK : ) S

The principal activities of ScottishPower Energy Management Limited (“the company”), registered company number
- §C215843, are the wholesale purchase and sale of electricity and gas and. the optlmlsatlon of gas storage facilities. The
company W|II continue with thls activity for the foreseeable future.

The ultimate parent of the company is Iberdrola S.A. ("lberdrola”}) whlch is listed on the Madrid stock exchange and the
immediate parent of the company is Scottish Power Retail Holdings Limited (“SPRH"), formerly known as Scottish Power
-Generation Holdmgs Limited. Scottish Power Limited (“SPL”) is the United Kingdom (“UK”) holdmg company of the
Scottlsh Power L|m|ted group (“ScottishPower”), of wh|ch the company isa member :

- The company is subject to the requirements of the European Market Infrastructure Regulation, as a Non- Financial
Counterparty. This is a European Union (“EU") regulation on Over-The-Counter (”OTC") derivatives, central
counterparties and Trade Repositories. The regulation ‘requires counterparties, who have entered into derivative
contracts, to externally report these to an authorised Trade Repository, and to implement risk management standards
for all bilateral OTC denvatlves

The company is part of ScottishPower’s Energy Wholesale business function (“Energy Wholesale”). Until the 31
December 2018 Energy Wholesale’s operations were focused on managing the complex market conditions in relation to
the operation of ScottishPower’s generation asset basé (except for those technologies managed by ScottishPower’s
Renewables business) and managing ScottishPower’s exposure to the UK wholesale electnaty and gas markets. On 16
October 2018, Energy Wholesale agreed to sell the ScottishPower Generation group to Drax Smart Generation HoldCo
Limited (“Drax”). The sale, Wthh completed on 31 December 2018, means that all of ScottishPower’s generation capacity
is now from renewable energy sources. Going forward Energy Wholesale, and therefore the company, will focus on
managing ScottishPower’s. exposure to the UK wholesale electricity and gas markets for Retail and Renewables
generation. On 1 JuIy 2018 mainly gas storage assets were transferred from the company to ScottishPower Generation
Limited. On 30 November 2018, as part of the Drax transaction, certain gas storage and other assets and liabilities were
transferred from ScottlshPower Generation Limited to the company

2018 OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE . ] .
The table below provides key financial information relating to the company’s performance during the year. ‘

Revenue* ~© Operating loss* - Capital investment**
. . : 2018 = - 2017 2018 - 2017 - 2018 2017

" Financial key performance indicators’ “£m £m £m £m . £m £m -
ScottishPower Energy Management Limited 4,837.3 5,248.3 . (11.3) (31.5) 1.5 0.6

* Revenue and operating loss presented on page 12. . .
** (Capital investment as presented in Note 3 pages 26 and 27. ’ . . -

~Revenue decreased by £411.0 million to £4,837.3 million during the year. This was primarily due to decreased sales from
lower generation output and lower retail demand, and a decrease in sell trades transacted during certain market
windows in which the company is required to stand ready to sell under industry regulations.

'Operatlng loss reduced by £20. 2 mllllon to £11.3 million in 2018. This primarily reflected the increase in gross margin due
_to favourable mark-to-market movements and an increase in other operating income received for services provided to
other group companies. These favourable movements were partially offset by.an increase in staff costs due to -
reorganisation and restructuring and impairment of gas storage facilities. :

LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT
Cash and net debt

Net cash flows from operatlng activities increased by £21.4 mllllon (refer to cash flow statement on page 14). Net debt

mcreased by £64.1 million to £108.7 mijllion. This movement comprised an increase in current group Ioans payable.

The company is funded by a combination of debt.and equity.’ AII equity is held by the company’s immediate parent
undertaking, SPRH. SPL grants all of the loan facilities to the company. Treasury services are provided by SPL. Further
details of the treasury policy for ScottishPower, and how it manages it is included in Note 5.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LlMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT contmued

]

. HEALTH AND SAFETY :
The company has a clear strategy to' continue to improve health and safety performance using ScottlshPower health and
safety standards. A more extensive descnptlon of how ScottishPower, and therefore the. -company, addresses health and
safety requirements can'be found in'the most.recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. :

UK DECISION TO LEAVE THE EU (BREXIT) :
The UK was originally scheduled to leave the EU on 29 March 2019. Following intensive negotlatlons on the subjects of a -
separation payment, mutial recognition of citizens’ rights and avoiding a hard border between Northern Ireland and the
Republic of Ireland, two key documents were approved.by the EU Council on 25 November 2018: the EU Withdrawal
Agreement (a legally binding document setting out the terms of the UK's exit from the EU, including citizens’ rights and
the Irish ‘backstop’); and the Political Declaration (setting out the basis for a future negotiation of the future UK-EU
relationship after Brexit, including UK-EU trade and security). As at the date of sighing these accounts this deal has not
been approved’ by the UK Parllament The EU and the UK have now agreed a delay to Brexit'until 31 October 2019 at the
latest.

If the EU Withdrawal Agreement is not approved by the UK Parliament within the EU timelines the risk of a ‘no-deal’
Brexit exists. This would probably mean that the trade relationship between the UK and EU would revert to World Trade
Organisation (“WTQ") rules. The UK Government has publishéd a series of technical papers covering some of the key
areas of concern in the event of ‘no-deal’ scenario. Essentially these papers seek-to minimise the |mpacts as much as
possnble, including by I|m|t|ng the scale of the changes to existing arrangements.

Nevertheless, WTO rules would mean that trade ,between the UK and EU whicﬁ is currently frictionless, would become
cross-border trade subject to customs checks and tariffs. In the event of a ‘no-deal’ scenario some econornic disruption is
expected in the UK and thus ScottishPower is preparing to mitigate any negative impacts arising from this outcome. A
cross-party operational working group has been co-ordinating ScottishPower’s preparations to mitigate the impact of a
‘no-deal’ Brexnt Some of the key risks considered are explained in the table below.

SCOTTISHPOWER - BREXIT RISKS

RISK - ' ' RESPONSE ‘

Impacts arising from the UK decision to leave the EU or In addition to monitoring ongoing developments related to
market, reactions to events during the negotiation. These Brexit the tredsury risk management policy is in place to’ ‘
impacts could include movements in the value of Sterling hedge financial risks which are the most prevalent in the
and other financial instruments. In the longer term there short term. Any longer term impact on the UK ecohomy and
could be positive or negative changes in the UK economy and|its impact on ScottishPower and therefore the company will
in the political and regulatory environment in which the be managed in line with developments. A ScottishPower
‘company operates. wide regulatory group is monitoring any potential risks

arising from a regulatory perspective and is engaging with
governments and regulators to minimise any disruption.

Foreign exchange rate exposure .and addltlonal tanffs if WTO Exchange rate hedged on existing orders and contracts.
rules apply. B B Legal review of all critical contracts to determine potential
' exposure to additional tariffs :

"(Contractual risk for existing non-trading contracts including [Legal review of all critical contracts to determine potential
the risk.of contract re-openers, clauses such as force exposure and mitigation specific to each contract.
majeure/material adverse change clauses and jurisdiction.

Contractual risk for existing trading contracts including - Risk based assessment of all contracts although some are UK

master trading agreements and broker and exchange: = |only contracts.and are therefore unaffected and the majority
contracts. o ' of brokers and exchanges are UK-based. '




SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
: STRATEGIC REPORT continued -

UK DECISION TO LEAVE THE EU (BREXIT) contmued

SCOTTISHPOWER -"BREXIT RISKS S e e o E

" |RISK : : RESPONSE
- |Free movement of labour - potential restnctlons on EU - |Recent announcements by the UK Government confirmed EU

nationals working in the UK or international assignees from [nationals in the UK will be part of an EU settlement scheme.
elsewhere in the Iberdrola group, not currently in the UK but Workplace audit underway to assess |mpact and support

wishing to enter the UK. . - , _ staff affected through the process

Data Protection — impact of General Data Protection All intercompany contracts reviewed to update contractual
Regulation (“GDPR") rules and status of UK post Brexit could- |clauses. High risk suppliers identified and where appropriate
impact transfer of data between group companies and discussions commenced to amend contractual terms.

suppllers in the normal course of busmess

Evén in the event of an agreement being concluded, Brexit ‘may have both risks and opportunities for ScottishPower and
~ therefore the company. Until the terms of exit and the nature of the future relatlonshlp are clear it is not possnble to be
- definitive about these. : : :

Many of the risks described above relating to a ‘no-deal’ scenario arise from so-called ‘horizontal’ issues where there
could be issues a‘ffecting businesses in many sectors of the economy. UK official forecasts are for a negative impact on
the UK economy as a whole; in the event of a ‘no-deal’ scenario it might be sharply negative, at least for the
short/medium term. ScottishPower, and therefore the company, will continue to monitor the impact of Brexit and take
appropriate action to protect operatlons as the outcome of the Brexit deal becomes clearer.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

~ .ScottishPower’s strategy is to conduct business in a manner benefiting customers through balancing cost and risk whlle
- delivering shareholder value and protecting ScottishPower’s performance ‘and reputation by prudently managing the.
risks inherent in the business. To' maintain this strategic direction ScottishPower- develops and implements risk

~management policies and procedures, and promotes a-robust control environment at all levels of the organisation.
Further details of the risk management practices can be found in Note 5.

The principal risks and uncertainties of ScottishPower (other than those spec'i‘r"c to Brexit already diScussed) and so
those of.the company, that may impact current and future operational 'and financial performance and the management
of these risks are described below.

SCOTTISHPOWER - GLOBAL | .’ .
RISK . . . RESPONSE *

‘| Material deterloratlon in the relat|ve|y stable and predictable|Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate

“|UK-regulatory and political environment, mcludmg any stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability
sudden changes of policy, or interventions outside” and political consensus is maintained and public backing is’
established regulatory frameworks. secured for the-necessary investment in the UK energy

system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of
ad hoc intervention in markets.

A major health and safety incident in the course of ScottishPower’s Health and Safety function provides

operations could irnpact staff, contractors, communities or  |specialist services and support for the businesses in relation
the environment. : ) L to health and safety. A comprehensive framework of health

and safety policy and procedures, alongside audit
programmes, is established throughout ScottishPower, which
aim to ensure not only continuing legal compliance but also
drive towards best practice in all levels of its health and
safety operations.




SCOTI'ISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

SCOTTISHPOWER - GLOBAL
“[RISK

RESPONSE

Breach in cyber security and unwanted infiltration of the

-|ScottishPower IT infrastructure by internal and external
parties. :

Implementation of a cyber-nsk policy which provides the
framework for mitigation. Proactive approach to identifying
where SpottishPower is vulnerable and addressing these
points through technical solutions. Educating company -
employees as to how behaviour can reduce this risk.
Embedding-éyber security in all projects where appropria"te.

The principal risk and uncertainty of .the Energy Wholesale business, ahd so that of the company, that may impact the
current and future operational and financial performance and the management of this risk is described below:

ENERGY.WHOLESALE . T . )

RISK

RESPONSE

Inability to efficiently hedge the exposure to power prices.
due to the complexity of the price cap pricing mechanism.

Contmuous assessment of the wholesale energy markets ’
and constant monitoring of the,lmpact of market
movements across seasons. -

ON BEHALF [QF THE BOARD

Neil Stainton
Director

(6 July2019 .




- SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and'audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT :
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the followmg, required by the Companies Act 2006 to be mcluded
inthe Dlrectors Report, within the Strateglc Report, found on pages 1 to 4:

. ihformation on financial risk management and policies‘; and
. information regarding future developments of the business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS : )
The net loss for the year amounted to £9.2 mllhon (2017 £25.8 milhon) A dividend of £20.0 miillion was pald durmg the
year (2017 nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AND REGULATION ) . .
Throughout its operations, ScottishPower strives to meet, or exceed, relevant legislative and regulatory envuronmental )
requirements and codes of practice. A more extensive descrlptlon of how ScottishPower addresses environmental
requnrements can be found in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL o

EMPLOYEES I : oo
. Employment regulat;on ' ' '
ScottishPower has well- deﬂned poI|c1es in place'throughout nts businesses to ensure compliance with applicable laws and .
" related codes of practlce These policies cover a wide range of employment issues such as disciplinary, grievance,
harassment, discrimination, stress, anti-bribery and ‘whistleblowing’ and have been brought together in the Code of .
Ethlcs of lberdrola and its group of compames (which also outlines expectatlons for employees’ conduct).

Training :

ScottishPower has a continuing:commitment to training and personal development for its employees with 3,061 (2017

2,900) training events in the.year. Much of the training is focused on health and safety and technical training ensuring

field staff are safe and competent. In-addition ScottishPower recruits over 100 craft and engineering trainees annually
- who undertake a formal, structured training programme leading towards a recognised apprenticeship or formal
engineering qualification. Team leaders and managers also participate in core management skills training and there are.
" management development pragrammes and modules aimed at increasing leadership capability. - '

Employee feedback and consultation .

In 2018, ScottishPower carried out its annual employee engagement survey, 'The LOOP’ as part of an Iberdrola group
engagement survey framework. _The survey provides key insight on what employees feel about working for
ScottishPower. The response rate in 2018 equalled 2017, with 75% of employees providing feedback. The results of the
survey highlighted a number of strengths and opportunities and overall 61% of employees feel proud to work: for
ScottishPower. Areas of strength highlighted were in relation to collaboration, performance management and safety. The’
opportunities identified as part of the feedback where the ScottishPower businesses have the opportunity to respond to -
challenges are around providing more clarity on ScottishPower’s future strategy, enabling employees to carry out their
role 'and supporting employees to develop and grow through the organisation. These areas are a3 focus for the
" ScottishPower action plan going forward.

In addition to employee feedback, ScottishPower regularly consults with employees and their representatives via a
variety of ‘channels, including monthly team meetings, business conferences, health and safety committees and
employee relatlons forums. '

Inclusion and dfverslty : :
Inclusion and diversity fosters innovation and creatlwty, driving better business performance. ScottlshPower is working
hard to create an inclusive and diverse workplace that is open to changg; where employees feel they can be themselves.



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT continied

EMPLOYEES continued

Inclusion and diversity continued .

In March 2018, ScottishPower welcomed thé steps the UK Government has taken to introduce Ieglslatlon on gender pay
gap reporting. ScottishPower is committed to pay for pe,rformance equally and fairly, and is focused on breaking down
barriers across the employee lifecycle as over time this will improve the Gender Pay Gap position‘ whilst widening the
inclusion of other under-represented groups. Key activities during 2018 included the design and roll out of e-learning and
training on diversity and unconscious bias for recruiting managers and newly appointed managers.

In addition,.lin 2018 ScottishPower welcomed six females into Science, Technology,'Engineering and Mathematics

.(“STEM”) based placements as part of the Women Returners programme to support women returning to work after a

lengthy career break. The programme aims to help women grow their career after a career break from the STEM sector, -
offering the time ‘and support needed to refresh and redevelop their skills to help them in returning to employment ona
more permanent basis. :

' " As part of its commltment to' closing the gender pay gap the ScottishPower Senior Leadershlp Team have set two

aspirational targets to break down the barriers for women:

* Increase the number-of women in ScottishPower’s senior leadership population to exceed 30% (currently 21%).
« Increase the number of women in ScottishPower’s middle management population to exceed 40% (currently 29%).

For more info,rmatio'n on ScottishPower’s gender pay gap please go to
https://www.scottishpower.com/pages/gender_pay.aspx

:ScottishPower continues toforge links with a.number of recognised organisations. to grow its commitment to diversity.
and inclusion. These include: Business Disability Forum, Employers Nétwork for Equality & Inclusion, Equate, Working

Families, ENABLE, POWERful Women and Stonewall. ScottishPower expects all employees to be treated with respect and -
has supporting policy guidance on People with Disabilities to help ensure equality of employment opportunity for people
with disabilities. ScottishPower have obtained the Disability Confident standard and are accredited'to an ‘engaged level’
with Carers Scotland. In addition, in 2018 ScottishPower was part of an inspirational programme, called Breaking
Barriers. The programme aimed to raise aspirations for young people who have learning disabilities and provide equal
opportunities to’access university. Between January and June 2018 eight learners aged 18 to 24 studied for a Certificate
in Applied Business Skills at the University of Strathclyde Busmess“SchooI As part of this experience the learners gained
valuable skills and work experience as part'of an eight week placement with ScottlshPower

Employee health and wellbeing : BN : .
ScottlshPower promotes and supports the. physical and mental heaith and wellbeing of its employees through a’

- programme of health promotion and information run by its occupat:onal health department

Employee volunteering

ScottishPower prides itself in being a good. corporate neighbour, prowdmg support to the communities it serves in each
of its businesses. Volunteermg is central to community involvement and ScottishPower has an excellent track record in
this area. ScottishPower’ s company-wide Volunteering Policy has been actively utilised by employees during 2017. This
policy gives all registered volunteers, on an annual basis, an opportumty to take an additional one day’s pald leave, to be
used as a volunteerlng day .

Modern Slavery Statement :
ScottishPower is committed to human and labour rlghts and to ehmmatmg modern slavery that could in any way be o
connected to its business. ScottishPower welcomed the introduction of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. ScottishPower
publlshed its most recent Modern Slavery Statement in May 2018 which was approved by the Board of Directors of
Scottish Power Limited and signed by Keith Anderson Chief Executive Ofﬂcer

ScottishPower’s Modern Slavery State’ment is published on the ScottishPower’s website at;
www.scottishpower.com/pages/scottishpowers_modern_slavery_-statement.aspx.



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT contlnued '

' DIRECTORS
The directors who held office durmg the year were as follows:

Julidn Calvo Moya
Heather Chalmers White A : -
Richard Hyde ; (resigned 31 January 2018)

Carlos Pombo Jiménez - , ~ .
Neil Stainton . . (appointed 25 April 2018)

’ Heather Chalmers Whlte resigned as a dlrector of the company on 31 January 2019 Douglas Ness was appomted asa
director of the company on 30 May 2019.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY :
In terms of the company’s Articles of Association, a quahfymg third party mdemmty provusmn isin force for the benefit of
all the directors of the company and has been in force durmg the financial’ year. : '

ST‘ATEM ENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

‘The directors are responsnble for preparmg the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with- applicable law and
regulataons .

Company law requires' the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as. adopted by:
the EU as at the date of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 (”IFRSs as adopted by the EU”) and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless-they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the proflt or loss of the company for that period..In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: :
- . » select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
¢ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU; . _
e assess the company’s ability.to continue as a gomg concern disclosing, as applucable matters related to gomg
- concern; and . .
¢ use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to hquldate or to cease operatlons or have no
reallstlc alternative but to do so. : :

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the’
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that their financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for
such internal control as they determine is necessary to énable the preparation of financial statements-that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for takmg such steps as are -
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and. to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities."

Under appllcable Iaw and regulations, the dlrectors are also responsuble for preparlng a Strateglc Report and Dlrectors
Report that complies with'that law and those regulatlons

Disclosure of mformatlon to audrtor
Each of the directors in office as at the date of thlS Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:
® 5o far as:he is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and
_ e he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establlsh that the company 3 audltor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is glven and should be |nterpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Compames
Act 2006 -



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT uMWEb g
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

'AUDITOR - A : A . R
KPMG LLP were re-appointed ajé the auditor of the company for the year ended 31 Deqembe_r 2018; .

BY ORDER OATHE BOARD

Neil Stainton
Director
" loJuly 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .
TO THE MEMBER OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Oplmon . .
.We have audited the flnancral statements of ScottishPower Energy Management Limited (”the company”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 which comprises the Balance Sheet_ Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and related notes, including the accounting policies in Note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its loss for the year
then ended; :
® have been properly prepared in accordance with Internatronal Financial Reportmg Standards as adopted by the
European Union; and . .
. have been prepared in accordance with the requnrements of the Compames Act 2006

‘Basns for opinion . . )

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternatlonal Standards on Aud|t|ng (UK} (“1SAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsrbllltles under, and are independent of the
company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the Financial Reporting Council {“FRC") Ethical Standard.
We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufflcrent and appropriate basis for our opinion.

 The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audlt

Uncertainties related to' the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the frnanc1al statements. All
audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors, such as the recoverability of trade
receivables, property plant and equipment and related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the
company s future prospects and performance

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are subject to
unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a
standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company'’s future prospects and
performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factars or all possible future implications
for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit. . '

Going concern

The directors have prepared the fmanaal statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to Ilquldate the
company or to cease operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial position means that this is
realistic: They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast srgmﬂcant doubt over its-
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ( ‘the going
concern penod") .

We are requ_ired to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the directors’
conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and
analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or abnllty to continue operatlons over the going
- concern penod We have nothing to report in-these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as.subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at‘:the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material .
uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Strategic report and directors’ report :
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the d|rectors report. Qur oplmon on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED continued

Strategic report and directors’ report continued
Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial

statements; and )
e in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or :
¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as.a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Philip Charles (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

319 St. Vincent Street '
Glasgow

G2 5AS

2 luly 2019
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET o :
at 31 December 2018

'

2018 2017

Notes £m £m
ASSETS . C
NON-CURRENT ASSETS : A . :
Intangible assets o . . . . ' -3 . 7.6 1.4
" Property, plant and equipment : . . 4 17.7 - 11.7
Financial assets : - - ‘ ' - 312 . 201
Derivative financial instruments ' o P 5 .. 312 . 201
. Trade and other receivables ' : o 6 .. 55.9 39.1
. NON-CURRENT ASSETS . B L ' 112.4 : 72.3
CURRENT ASSETS : e S N R -
Inventories . . . ' ' . 7 16.2 © 109
Tradé and other receivables - ) i . 6 517.6 . 573.0
Current tax asset o . . 1.3 .21
" Financial assets’ : ) SRR R N " 146.2 © 991
Derivative financial instruments S s 1462 99.1°
CURRENT ASSETS . . C ' - 681.3 685.1
. TOTAL ASSETS - i - . ] .793.7 757.4
EQUlTY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY . 4
. Ofshareholders of the parent - ' : . . 1829 202.4
Share capital : B . - 8,9 50.0 <+ 50.0
Hedge reserve . o ] : 9 - . 59.2 . . 488.
" Retained earnings ‘ . 9 - . 73.7 103.6
TOTAL EQUITY. - ’ o : - . ) 182.9 202.4
NON-CURRENT-LIABILITIES . .
_"Provisions ’ L 1.2 C -
Other provisions . : .10 1.2 -
Bank borrowings and other financial liabilities ) . o ’ 3.6 0.5
Derivative financial instruments - S _ 5 36 .05
Trade and other payables N - o o n 5607 | 39.2
Deferred tax liabilities - : ’ ) 2 . 171 - . 15.0
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - . ' : . ’ ) 77.9 " 54,7
" CURRENT LIABILITIES o . . ' ) ’
Provisions o . . o 10 - . 1.0 . 0.1 -
Bank borrowings and.other financial liabilities . . - ’ .208.1 108.2
Loans and other borrowings g o : 13. -108.7 - 446 -
) Derivative financial instruments . . . ) 5 . 99.4 63.6
“Trade and other payables - ) : ) L 11 323.8 392.0
CURRENT LIABILITIES - : : - . .5329 500.3
TOTAL UABILITIES- o . . 610.8 555.0
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - - - 793.7 - 757.4

Approved by e Board and signed on its behalf on b July 20;9.

Neil Stainton
Director

The acc‘omApanying Notes 1 to 25are an integral part of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.
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'SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY. MANAGEMENT LIMITED
~INCOME STATEMENT ,
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Notes £fm £m

‘Revenue. 14 4,837.3 - 52483
.. Procurements . (4,835.2) (5,265.8).
GROSS MARGIN - 2.1 - (17.5)
NET OPERATING EXPENSES . (8.5) (11.5)
Staff costs 15 (14.7) . (85)
Net external incom’é/(expenses)_ 6.2 -(3.0)
External services ' (24.8) (27.8)|

_ Other operating income 31.0 24.8
Taxes other than income tax .16 - (0.5) . (1.0)
GROSS OPERATING LOSS . (6.9) ~(30.0)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade and other receivables 0.1 <

Depreciation and amortlsatlon charge, allowances and provusuons C 17 " {4.5) (1.5)
OPERATING LOSS . ) (11.3) - . (31.5)
Finance income -~ 18 1.1 © 3.2
Finance costs 19 (1.3) (3.5)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (11.5) (31.8)
Income tax 20, 2.3 | 6.0
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (9.2) (25.8)

Net loss for the. current and prior year are wholly attrlbutable to the eqmty holder of ScottlshPower Energy Management

Limited.

All results relate tb'continuing operations.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 25 are an integral part of the income statement forthe year ended 31 December 2018. A

12 -



SCOTTISHPOWER ENER_GY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2018 -

2018 L2017

: . : . . ) Note - " fm £fm
* NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR _ . 4 _ I (9.2) - (25.8)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ' ' ' ' . .
Items that may be subsequently reclassuf‘ed to thei income statement
Cashflow hedges: : .
Change in the value of cash flow hedges S : . L 9 12.8 " 29.2
Tax relating to cash flow hedges : R . - .9 - (24) - (5.5)
_OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ' : : 104 23.7
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEFOR THE YEAR ‘ 1.2 (2.1)

Total comprehenswe income for both years is whoIIy attnbutable to the equity holder of ScottlshPower Energy
Management Limited. L .

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Ordinary .
- share "~ Hedge Retained
capital  reserve earnings | Total
. e £m fm - £m £m
. At 1 January 2017 - - 50.0 T 251 © 1294 204.5°
o _Total comprehensive income for the year . - o - 23.7 (25.8) ) (2.1)
At1January 2018. . . ’ 500 . - 48.8 103.6 202.4

" Adjustments due to IFRS 9.(Refer to Note 181.2) . . - - ~- - (0.7) (0.7)

" Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 o e : . 50.0° 48.8 . 102.9 -201.7
Total comprehensive income for the year’ o ) - 104 - (9.2) Co12
Dividends ~ . . ' - - - (200 '(20.0)
At 31 December 2018 - . . 500 592 73.7 - 182.9

The accompanylng Notes 1to 25 are an mtegral part of the statement of comprehensnve income and the statement-of
changes in equity.for the year ended 31 December 2018
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT -
for the year ended 31 De;ember 2018

2018

2017
A £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities ’ -
.Loss before tax (11.5) (31.8)
" Adjustments for: .
Depreciation, amomsatlon and |mpa|rment o 4.4 1.4
Change in provisions 11 0.1
Finance income and costs 0.2 0.3
Write-off of non-current assets 0.1. 0.1
. Net fair value (losses)/gains on operatmg derivatives - (6.6) 239
." Changes in working capital: o
Change in trade and other receivables 37.7 " (29.0)
Change in inventories 6.0 (1.8)
Change in trade payables (51.3) . (4.9)
Provisions paid (0.2) -
Income taxes received 2.1 2.3
Interest received - -0.1 0.1
Net cash flows from operating actnvmes (i) (17.9) (39.3) -
~Cash flows from investing activities
Net transfers from lberdrola group companles (24.3) -
"Investments in intangible assets . (1;5)‘ : (0.6)
Netcash flows from investing activities (ii) . (25.8) (0.6)
(Cash flows from financing activities .
Increase in amounts due to Iberdrola group companies - current loans payable 64.1 40.5 -
Dividends paid to company's eqmty holder {20.0) . -
Interest paid - {0.4) " {0.6)
43.7 39.9

Net cash flows from financing activities (iii) .

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {i)+(ii)+(iii)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and.cash equivalents at end of year

_ The até:_ompanying Notes 1 to 25 are an integral part of the cash flow étatement for the yéar ended 31 December 2018.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
31.December 2018 _

-1 BASIS OFAPREPARATIO'N
A COMPANY INFORMATION
ScottishPower. Energy: Management Limited (“the company”), reglstered company number $C215843, is a prrvate
‘company limited by shares, |ncorporated |n Scotland and its reglstered address is 320 St. Vlncent Street, GIasgow
- Scotland, G2 5AD. : .

B BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS - :
The company is required by law to prepare Accounts and to dellver them to the Reglstrar of Companies. The Accounts
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reportlng Standards as adopted by the EU as at the date
of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (IFRS as adopted
‘by the EU). The Accounts are prepared in accordance with the Accounting Policies.set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts
sare presented in poUnds Sterling and are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand unless otherwise indicated.

Bl EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS-15 AND IFRS 9 |
This is the first set of the companys annual financial ‘statements in WhICh IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from. Contracts W|th :
Customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ have been applied. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of the
|mplementat|on of these standards is described below. .

81.1 EFFECT OF INITIAL A'P,PLICATION OF IFRS 15 . )
The company has applied IFRS 15 for the first time using the cumulative effect method i.e. by recognising the cumulative -
effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the 'opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the-
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and the IFRS 15
drsclosure requrrements have not been applied to comparative information. :

‘The application of IFRS 15 has not had 'a significant impact on the company’s revenue recognition and therefore there is .
nothing to disclose in relation to the impact on the opening balances at 1 January 2018, the balances at and the results
for the year ended 31 December 2018. :

'B1.2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’ replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmtlon and Measurement’ for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accountmg for fmancnal |nstruments
classification and measurement; impairment; and-hedge accounting.

With 'the:exc'eption of hedge accounting, which the company applied prospectively, the company has ‘applied. {FRS 9
retrospectively, with the initial application date of 1 January 2018. In line with consequential amendments to IFRS 7 .
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the company has elected not to restate comparative information. As a result, the ™
comparative inforfation provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the company’s previous accounting
" policy under IAS 39.

The table below illustrates the impact of the initial application of IFRS 9 on the opening balances at 1 January 2018.

Adjustments
due to IFRS 9
. £m

Retamed earnings . . o . )
Recognltlon of Expected Credit Losses (“ECLs”) under IFRS 9 S : S (0.9)
‘Related tax . . S ) : - 0.2
Impact at 1 January 2018 N ) ; . L v (0.7)
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued ~ . ,
31 December 2018 -

1  BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

B  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS contlnued

B1. EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 AND IFRS 9 contmued

B1.2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9 continued

(a) Classification and measurement of financial assets and flnanaal liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categorles for financial-assets: measured at amortised ‘cost, fa|r value
through other. comprehensnve income (“FVOCI”) and fair value through profit or. loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of
financial assets ‘under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial.asset is managed and its -
contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates_the previous- IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and
receivables. and: available for sale. IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements 'in 1AS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. As stated above, with the exception of hedge accounting, the company has applied
the classification and measurement requirements retrospectlvely, with' initial application on 1 January 2018, thus the
f|gures for comparatlve perlods have not been restated.

Financial assets. :
The company has classified its fmancnal assets, excluding derlvatlves, as belng held at amortlsed cost. A descrlptlon of the
amortised cost category of financial assets can be found in Note 2G1.1..

The following-table and the accompanying notes explam the original measurement categorles under IAS 39 and the new -
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the company’s financial assets at 1 January 2018. The effect of
adopting IFRS 9 on the carrylng amounts of financial assets at 1 January 2018 relates solely to the new impairment
requurements : .

) "N in
Original carrying ew carrying

Original ’ New value under
: . classification - classification . value under 1AS 39 IFRS 9
Financial asset : under IAS 39 . under IFRS 9 Notes' " fm £m
D'erivati'ye financial instruments - Fair value-hedging ) Fair value-hedging i 1192 119.2.

. instrument. © . - instrument .
‘ Current receivables ' C . Loans d@nd receivables Amortised cost (i), (iii) 559.9 559.0
Non-current receivables . Loans and receivables- . Amortised cost (ii) 39.1 ©39.1
Total financial assets K ) 718.2 - 717.3

"{i) Derivative financial instruments continue to be held at fair value. Within derivative financial instruments there are hedging derivatives with a fair
value of £66.6 million and non- hedglng derivatives with a fair value of £300 0 miffion. These balances are offset by a netting adjustment of £247.4
million.

(i) Current and non- current receivables comprise trade receivables (including accrued income) and trade receivables due from Iberdrola_group
companies (refer to Notes 5(a) and 6). Balances that were classified as Loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified as Amortised cost. .

(iii) An increase of £0.9 million in the allowance for impairment over these balances was recogmsed in the opening retained earnlngs at1January 2018
on transition to IFRS 9 (refer to footnote 1B1.2(b}).

Refer to Note S for details of the company’s financial assets in the current year. The classification and measurement
‘requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on‘the company. Most financial assets continue to be valued at
* amortised cost and derivative financial instruments contlnue to be valued ‘at fair value as was the case under the
prewously applied IAS 39.

Financial liabilities : :

The classification of the company s fmancnal liabilities has not undergone any changes with respect to the appllcatlon of
IFRS 9. Consequently the application of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the company’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments (for derivatives that are used as hedging instruments
refer to 1B1.2(c) overleaf)) For an explanation of how the company classifies and measures financial Ilabllltles and
accounts for related gains and losses under IFRS 9 refer to Note 2G1.2.

(b) Impairment off"nancual assets C
The application of IFRS 9 has changed the company’s.accounting for impairment Iosses for-financial assets by replacing
IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a new ECL approach. This new impairment model applies to financial assets
“measured at amortised cost. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39 (refer to Note 2G1.1).
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SCOTI'ISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31‘ December 2018

1 ~BASISOF PREPARATION continued )

B BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS contlnued

B1. EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 AND‘IFRS 9 cqntinued

B1.2 EFFECT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 8 continued

(b) lmpalrment of financial assets continued : :

The company applies the simplified approach for calculation of ECLs. The loss allowance is measured at an.amount equal
to a lifetime ECL. The company has adopted the practical expedlent whereby it calculates the ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix based on its historical credit loss experience and where ‘possible readily - available forecast
information. ; . )

Additional information about how the- company measures the allowance for impairment is described in Note 5. The
company has adopted the impairment requirements retrospectlvely, with initial application on 1 January 2018, thus
optmg not to restate the frgures for comparatlve perrods .

The company. has determmed that the application of IFRS 9’s lmpalrment requlrements at1l January 2018 results in an
additional allowance for impairment as follows: 4 . . .
. . Co - — ’ £m

Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under 1AS 39 (trade and other receivables) o -
Additional impairment recognised at 1 January 2018 on current-trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 - 0.9
" Loss aIIowance at 1'January 2018 under IFRS 9 . 0.9

(c) Hedge accountlng

The company has elected to apply the new general hedge accountlng ‘model in IFRS 9. Th|s requires the company to
ensure that hedge accountlng relationships are aligned with its risk management objectlves and strategy and to apply a
more qualitative and forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

The company uses forward contracts to hedge the variability in cash flows arising from changes in foreign exchange rates -
and commodity prices. There has been no change to the accounting treatment of forward. contracts used to hedge
commodity purchases. At the date of initial application, all of the company’s existing hedging relationships were eligible
to be treated as continuing hedging relatlonshlps For an explanatlon of how the company applies hedge accounting
under IFRS 9, refer to Note 2G1.3.

C ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

C1. IMPACT OF NEW IFRS » :

In preparing these Accounts, the company has applied aII relevant International Accountmg Standards (”IAS")
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC") (collectively referred to as IFRS) that have been adopted by the EU as of the date of approval of these Accounts
and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the company has applied the following amendments for the first time:

Standard ’ o ‘ - Notes

« Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 -2016 Cycle ' . (a), {b)

« [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' {in¢luding 'Amendments to IFRS 15: Effective date ©
of IFRS 15' and 'Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers) )

« IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ . e (d)

e Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property Transfers of Investment Property" ; (a)

s Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payments Clarification and Measurement of Share based Payment - (a)
Transactions’ :

* Amendments to IFRS 4 'Applylng IFRS 9 Fmancnal Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (a)
« IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ : : . -(a)

(a) The application of these pronouncements has not had a material impact on the company’s accounting policies, financial position or performance. .

(b) This pronouncement includes amendments to three standards. The' amendments to IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of Internatlonal Financial
Reporting Standards' and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' have been applied by the company effective 1 January 2018. The
amendments to FRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' were applied by the company effective 1 January 2017.

(c) Referto Note 1B1.1 for further information.

(d) Refer to Note 1B1.2 for further information.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED' .
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION continued ‘
C ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued
- C1. IMPACT OF NEW IFRS continued

The following new standards and amendments to standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) but have an effective date after the date of these financial statements or have not been endorsed by the

EU, thus have not been |mplemented by the company

<

Standa rd

Notes

IASB effectwe

date (for periods

commencing

Planned date of
application by

on or after). the company
¢ IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ “(e) 1 January 2019 1 January 2019
¢ [FRIC 23 Uncertalnty over Income Tax Treatments (fl <. 1January 2019 - 1 January 2019
e Amendments to IFRS 9 FlnanCIaI Instruments: Prepayment Features ' (f) 1January 2019 1 January 2019
with Negative Compensation' L o
D Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Assouates and Joint Ventures: (f) 1 Janoary 2019 1 January 2019
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' S
~ ¢ Annual lmproVements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle 3] 1January 2019 1 January 2019
* Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: PIan Amendment, ] 1January 2019 1 January 2019
Curtailment or Settlement’ . I e
* Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework-in IFRS ' (f), (g) 1 January 2020 1 January 2020 - ‘
Standards : . ’ .
e Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ {f), (g) 1 January 2020 1lanuary 2020
* Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS8- . (f), (g) 1 January 2020' 1 January 2020
’Accountlng Policies, Changes in Accountlng Estimates and Errors": T ) :
'Definition of Material'
‘¢ |FRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (f), (g) 1 January 2021 1 January 2021
* IFRS 14 'Regulatary Deferral Accounts' (f), (g), (h) 1January 2016  To be decided
« Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and IAS :(f), (g), (i) % Deferred To'be decided - -
28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures': 'Sale or indefinitely..

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

(e} Details of the impact of implementing IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is described at Note 1C2 overleaf.

(f) The future application of thls pronouncement is not expected to have a matenal umpact on the company's accountmg pollcles financial posmon or .
“performance. .

(g) Th|s pronouncement has not yet been endorsed by the EU

{h) The endorsement process of this interim standard has not been Iaunched as the EU has decided to wait for the final standard to be issued.

(i) The IASB set the effective date of this pronouncement as for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016. However, in December 2015, the
IASB’ postponed the effective date indefinitely pending the outcome of its research. prOJect on the equity method of accounting. The EU
endorsement process for this pronouncement has been postponed awamng a revised exposure draft from the 1ASB. The effectlve date will be
amended in due course. . )

C2. IMPACT-OF FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS 16 .
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for the company as from 1 January 2019 The impact of implementing th|s standard is
~ detailed below. The impact of this standard quI have no effect on the recorded cash flows. :

From the lessors’-perspective; IFRS 16 does not introduce any 5|gn|f|cant change From the Iessees perspectlve IFRS 16
removes the current classification of operating and finance leases and requrres for any lease agreements ‘that the lessee .
recognlses the present value of the lease on the balance sheet as a right- of use asset and a liability.

The company will transition to IFRS 16 applying the modified retrospective method which does not require comparative
periods to be restated but recognises the effect of the initial application of IFRS 16 on the date it is implemented i.e. 1 -
January 2019 Therefore, for lease agreements in which the company is the lessee, the lease liability will be measured at ..

. the present value of the remaining lease payments, applying an -appropriate discount rate as at the date of initial

application. Generally, right-of-use assets will be measured as the same amount as the’ correspondlng liabilities; both
these assets and liabilities will be recogmsed on the balance sheet. .
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS contmued ‘
31 December 2018

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

€~ ACCOUNTING STANDARDS cont/nued

C2 IMPACT OF FUTURE IMPLEMENTAT!ON OF IFRS 16 contmued o
The right-of-use assets will be depreciated and the charge recorded within Depreciation and amortlsatlon charge,
allowances and provisions in the income statement; snmllarly the discount on the liabilities will unwind over the term of .

the lease and charged to Finance costs in the income statement. The .expense in the year relating to minimum lease
payments under operating leases will no longer be recognised in the income statement; a charge of less than £0.1 million
as recognlsed in 2018 (refer to Note 4b(|))

_Based on the scope exemptions available under IFRS 16, in line with the Iberdrola'group, the company has opted not.to
apply it to lease agreements for intangible assets and- short-term leases i.e. leases wnth a term of twelve months or less

(which will continue bemg accounted for as now under |IAS 17 ‘Leases’).

A contract may include multiple lease components, “not all of which wouId qualify as a lease under IFRS 16. In line with

.the Iberdrola group, the company has opted to not separate multiple components for.accounting purposes but will

recognise them as a single component, except for ¢ertain agreemenits for WhICh the separation.may have a significant’
lmpact on the financial statements. Ce : K ! ‘

Asat1l January 2019, IFRS 16 will give rise to an increase in current and non-current liabilities totalling an estimated £0.7
million relating to land leases. This Iiability is presented on a discounted net present valie basis. As at the date of initial
application, the range of discount rates used to calculate the above pertamlng to Sterllng were in the range- of between
2.62% and 4: 59% . :

In comparing the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases.under the 5cope of IAS 17 as at
31 December 2018 (refer to Note 4) to the lease liabilities to be recognised as at 1 January 2019 under IFRS 16 (see

above) the reconCIIIng |tem is the application of different discount rate assumptlons

‘Thé company will continue to refine its accountmg pOlICIeS and monitor emergmg industry practlce in relatlon to this,
standard - -
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ASCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

" In determining and applylng accounting policies, judgement is often requwed in respect of items where the ch01ce of
specific policy to be followed could materially affect the reported amounts of revenues, ‘expenses, assets and |Iabl|ltleS of
the company, should it later be determined that a different choice would be more approprlate The company has no such.
policies. At 31 December 2018; there are no items which have sngnlﬂcant risk of resultmg in @ material adjustment to the
o carrymg amount of assets and liabilities in the next financial year. :

The principal a‘ccounting policies applied in preparing the company’s Accounts are set out below:

REVENUE
" PROCUREMENTS .
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
LEASED ASSETS
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
INVENTORIES (EXCLUDING EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES)
EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES
FOREIGN CURRENCIES
TAXATION
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

"r-x-'-.—:::mmrnc':nm>'

‘A REVENUE

" The company has applled IFRS 15 for the first time from 1 January 2018. Informatlon about the company’s accountlng
policies and estimates in relation to contracts with customers is provnded in Note 14. The effect of the initial application
of IFRS 15 is disclosed in Note 1B1.1. :

.B PROCURMENTS

Procurements comprises the value of units of wholesale energy purchased from the external market on behalf of

" Iberdrola group companies during the year and excludes Value Added Tax. The company also purchases wholesale
energy during certain market windows in which the company is requnred to stand ready to -buy under industry

regulatnons .

C INTANGIBLE ASSETS .

. The costs of acquired computer software are capltallsed on the, basus of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to usé the
specific software and are amortised on a stralght-llne basis over their operational lives. Costs directly associated with the
development of computer software programmes that are expected to generate economlc benefits over a period in
excess of one year are capitalised and amortised, on a straight-line baS|s over their estimated operatlonal lives. Costs
include employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate proportion of relevant overheads directly
attributable to bringing the software ‘into use. Amortlsatlon of computer software costs is over periods of up to seven
years..

Licences are stated at cost and are depreciated .on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 50 years.

. D PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUlPMENT -
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and is generally deprecnated ona stralght -line basis over the estimated
operational lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment includes where appropriate capitalised employee costs,
interest and other directly attributable costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
productlon of major qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as-the assets are substantially ready for their
" ‘intended use. Reviews of the estimated remaining |IVES and residual values of property,. plant and equipment are
undertaken annually. Residual values are assessed based on prices prevailing at each balance sheet date. :
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'SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2018 ‘

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued :
D PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued . .
- Land is not depreciated. The main depreCIatlon perlods used by the company are as set out below: -

. i . ) Years
Gas s't‘orage facilities - : . ) 35
Other items of property,-plant and eqUipment ' L L 4

‘£ IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS ;

At.‘each’ balance sheet date, the company reviews ‘the carrylng amount of its property, plant and equipment and
intangiblé assets to determine whether there is any indication ‘that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
Impalrment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
company estlmates the recoverable amount of the cash generatlng unit to which the asset belongs '

F. LEASED ASSETS . ‘

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at

inception date; whether fulfilment of the arrangement:is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) or the arrangement
" conveys a right to use the asset(s), even if that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement. For arrangements

entered into prior to 1 April 2004, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 April 2004 in accordance with the transitional

requnrements of IFRIC 4 Determmmg Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’. -

The company cIassifies-Ieases as finance Ieases whenever the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of .
ownership to the lesse'e‘ _AII other leases are classified as operating leases.

_ Rentals payable under operatlng leases are charged to the income statement ona straight- -line basis over the period of
the Iease . . o

G FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . ]
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fmancnal asset of one ent|ty and a fmancral liability or equnty C
instrument of another entity.” :

G1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9

G1.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS .

{a) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets excluding derivative financial assets are classified, at initial recognltlon as subsequently measured at
. amortlsed cost.’

Trade recelvables ‘without a srgnlflcant financing component and for Wthh the company has applied the simplified ECL
model are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 (refer to Note 14).

(b} Cla55|f‘cat|on and subsequent measurement

(i) Classification .

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thelr initial recognition unless the company changes its business -
 model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first

reporting period -following the change in the business model. These are expected to be infrequent and no other

reclassrflcatlons are permitted. . . :

The company’s business model for managing financial assets .refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. The business model of the com‘pany does not depend on-the intentions of
management for an individual instrument. Therefore, it is not an instrument-by-instrument classification approach and
should be determined from a hlgher level of aggregatron :
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED -
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINIT|ES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contlnued

« the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

‘G FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

G1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 contlnued . . . . . . .
G1.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS continued . - ‘ . '

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement continued

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following cond|t|ons . .
e itis held within a busmess model whose objectlve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and
- & its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and |nterest .
on the prlncnpal amount outstandmg ThIS assessment is referred to as the ‘SPPI’ test. :

(i) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses .

Financial assets.at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using'the effective interest method The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the company income

_statement.

The company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost include trade receivables and trade receivables due from

Iberdrola group companies.

Derecogmt/on : .
A financial asset (or, where appllcable a part of a flnanual asset) is primarily derecogmsed (i.e. removed from the

company s balance sheet) when the rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expired.

(iii) Impa/rment of ﬂnanaal assets .
Disclosures relating to impairment of fmanaal assets are prowded in Note 5. The company has adopted the S|mpl|f|ed
ECL model for its trade recewables measured at amortlsed cost. .

In applying the simplified model, loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an. amount equal to
lifetime ECL. For each grouping the company has established a provision matrix that is based on-its historical credit loss

experiehce, adjusted for, where possible, fo,rward-looking,factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The company considers a fmancual asset to be in default when:

« internal or éxternal information indicates that the company is unlikely to receive the outstandmg contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the company; or .

Measurement of ECLs »
ECLs are a probabahty~weaghted estamate of credit losses. Liféetime ECLs’ are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum perlod considered when estimating ECLs is the

" maximum contractual period over which the company is exposed to credit Tisk.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the: cash flows due to
the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted
at the effective interest rate of the fina ncial asset.

Credlt-lmpa/red financial assets

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether:financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

'Wnte -offs

The gross carrying amount of a fmanmal asset is written off (elther partially or in fuII) to the extent that there |s no
realistic prospect of recoyery. ’ - . ’
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'SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued o
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"2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued.

G  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

‘Gl ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 contmued

G1.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Recognition and initial measurement : -

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Ioans and borrowmgs and denvatlve financial
instruments. All financial liabilities are recognised |n|t|ally at fair value and, in the case of Ioans and borrowmgs and
payables ‘net of dlrectly attributable transactlon costs. :

(b) CIassrf‘catlon and subsequent measurement
-Funancnal Ilabllltles excludmg derivative fmanaal instruments are cIassrfled as measured at amortlsed cost.”

Fmanaal Ilabllmes are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method. |nterest expense
and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognised in-the income statement. The reference to foreign exchange gains
can be removed if.the company does not have derivatives. Any -gain or loss on derecognltlon is also recognised in the

income statement. : '

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
.mtegral part af the effective mterest rate. The effective interest method is included as Finance costs in the mcome
statement.

The company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the Iiahility is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an’existing financial liability is replaced by another from the'same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original |Iabl|lty and the recognition of a new liability. The dlfference in the respective carrying
j amounts is recognised in the income statement.

G1.3 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING

-(ay Derrvatrve financial instruments ' :

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts and forward commodity

_ contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks and commodity price risks respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at-fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are..

subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the falr value is positive and as

financial liabilities when the fair value is negatlve

The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value-is recognised immediately. in the income statement. However, where
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recogmtlon of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
belng hedged. .

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Under IFRS 9 the hedge documentatlon includes |dent|f|cat|on of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of
the risk being hedged and how ‘the company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness .
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is détermined). A
hedgmg relationship Can|IerS for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness reqmrements

e Theré is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
e The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship. .

® The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item . .

_ that the company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedglng mstrument that the company actually uses to -
' hedge that quantlty ‘of hedged |tem :

Hedge accounting is applled when certain conditions required by IFRS 9 are met. The accounting for cash flow hedges is
" discussed at (b) below. .

23
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued

G FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

G1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IFRS 9 continued

,Gl 3 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING contmued

'(b) Cash flow hedges :

For all forward contracts the company designates all of the forward contract (spot and forward element) as the hedging .
instrument. :

The portlon of gain or loss of the hedging instrument that was determined to be an effective hedge is recognlsed directly-
"in equity and forms part of the hedge reserve. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the hedgmg_'

mstruments is recognlsed in the income statement within Procurements for hedges of underlying operatlons

The company discontinues hedge accounting when the hedge instrument expires -or is sold, terminated or exercised,

" .when the hedge relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting or when the designation is revoked. In the case of

cash flow hedging, any gain or loss that has been recognised in equity until that time remains separately recognised in
equity until the forecast. transaction occurs. If the trarisaction is no longer expected to occur, related cumulative gains
and losses which have been prewously deferred i equity are recognised in the income statement. .

(c) Valuatron of f’nancral mstruments . :

In those circumstances where IFRS 9 requires financial instruments to be recognised in the balance: sheet at fair value,
the company s valuation strategies for denvatlves and other flnanC|aI instruments utilise as far as p055|ble quoted prices
in an active trading market.’ A

" In the absence of quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities, it is sometimes necessary to apply valuation

techniques where contracts are marked using approved models. Models are used for developing both the forward curves
and the val’uatio'n metrics of the instruments themselves where the instruments are complex combinations'of standard

or non-standard products. All .models are subject to rigorous testing prlor to being approved for valuation, and

subsequent continuous testing and approval procedures are desngned to ensure the valldlty and accuracy of the model,

assumptions-and inputs. :

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair'value hierarchy, the details of which are described in Note 5. ' :

(d) Offsettmg of fmanual assets and fmancral liabilities

The company offsets a financial asset and a financial-liability and reports the net amount only when the company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and.
settle the liability slmultaneously

G2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IAS 39
As detailed in Note 1B1.2 on initial application of IFRS 9 the company has elected not to restate comparatlve .
information. The accounting policies for the company under IAS 39 have therefore been presented below

(a) Financial assets categorlsed as trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice.amount
less a provision for impairment of doubtful debts. Allowance for doubtful debts has been estimated by
management, takmg into account future cash flows, based on past expérience and assessment of the current

~_economic environment within which the company operates. _ .
" (b) Financial liabilities categorised as trade and other payables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount.

(c) All interest bearing loans and borrowings -are |n|t|aIIy recognised at fair value, net-of directly attributable
transaction costs. Intérest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
‘effective interest method, except where theloan or borrowing is a hedged item in an effectlve fair value hedging
relationship. .

(d) The' company enters into sale and purchase transactlons for gas and eIectr|c1ty in'the normal course of its energy
business. Most of these contracts are entered into for the purposes- of the company’s expected business
requirements. These contracts are outside the. scope of IAS 39 and are accounted for on an accruals basis.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS contmued
31 December 2018

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued

G. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued -

G2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES UNDER IAS 39 continued ]

Certam physwal commodity purchase and sale contracts are within the scope of I1AS 39 because they are net settled or
are capable of net settlement. All such contracts are classified as derivative financial instruments in accordance with 1AS
39. The company also enters into treasury-related derivatives to manage its financial nsk The company'’s policies and
management with respect to r|sks are discussed in the Strateglc Report. :

IAS 39 requires aII'derivatives to be recognised on the balance sheet at fair value. Embedded derivatives in other
financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value through the income
statement. o :

Unrealised gains or losses on remeasurement of derivatives and embedded derivatives are reported in the income
statement except when hedge accounting is applied. Fair value gains and losses on derivatives used in ScottishPower’s
energy management activities are recognlsed in the income statement within Procurements and fair value gains and
losses -on derivatives used in ScottishPower’s treasury activities are recognised in the income statement as Finance
income or Finance costs as appropriate. ’

A G2.1 HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Hedge accounting is applied when certain condmons required by IAS 39 are met. The categones of hedge accounting are
con5|stent with those of IFRS 9

" G2.2 CASH FLOW HEDGES - : .
’ Accountlng for cash flow hedges is consistent under IFRS 9 treatment.

Gz 3 DISCONTINUING HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Both the circumstances that cause hedge accounting to be dlscontmued and the accountlng treatment of such hedges
are consistent with IFRS 9. : .

- G2.4 VALI_JATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE
Valuation of financial instruments held at fair value is consistent with IFRS 9. .

G3 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
This is consistent with the policy under IFRS 9.

H INVENTORIES (EXCLUDING EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES) '

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net.realisable value. Costs mclude all directly attrlbutable costs incurred .
in brlngmg the inventoriés to their present location and condltlon .

I EMISSIONS ALLOWANCES )
Energy Wholesale participates in the EU Emissions Trading Scheme. The company purchases emissions allowances and
then transfers them to other companies within the Energy Wholesale business function. As there are no specific rules
under IFRS dealing with the treatment of emissions allowances, the company, in alignment with group accounting policy,
classifies purchased emissions allowances as inventories as they are consumed in the production process within the
Energy Wholesale business function. Such.allowances are recognised at their acquisition cost. .. '

J FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. At the year end,
-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange rullng at the
" balance sheet date with exchange galns and Iosses recognised in the i income statement.

K TAXATION

The company’s assets for current tax are caIcuIated usmg the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted -
at the balance sheet date. :
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. SCOTI'ISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued
'K TAXATION continued
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in. the balance sheet and the corresponding. tax bases used in the’ cornputatlon of taxable prof«ts-
{temporary differences), and is accounted for using. the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable proflt will be available agalnst which deductlble temporary differences,-unused tax losses or credits
can be utlllsed .

Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the'asset realised based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged to the income statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited to equity (via
the statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity and:is shown in the
statement of comprehenswe income. . : :

L RETIREMENT BENEFITS

‘ScottishPower operates two defined benefit schemes and one defined contrlbutlon retlrement benefit scheme in the UK.
ScottishPower Energy Management Limited is ‘a parttcrpatmg company in. these group, arrangements, and the
contributions for the defined benefit schemes are based on pension costs across all the participating companies. - The
.company is unable to iden'tify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the °
scheme administrators do not calculate these separately for éach of the various companies participating in the schemes

- and therefore treats these schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the income™
statement in respect of- pension costs is the contributions payable in the period.

3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS’

Computer
software
, A . o  (Note (i)
Year ended 31 December 2017 o . £m
Cost:. B . _ ‘ ' . ) ’ .
At 1 January 2017 e ' . C 160
Additions : S : 0.6
Disposals . C - S K - (4.1)
At 31 December 2017 - . - ] ' . i . 12.5 -
Amortisation: - . - : ‘ L ' : .

- At1January 2017 . - T _ ' : 14.4
Amortisation for the year ' : . " S ’ 08
Disposals - ‘ . : . : S (4])
At 31 December 2017 ' R ' - 11.1
Net book value: . . -

At 31 December 2017 3 ) : . : ' - 1.4
At 1 January 2017 ) L - : s L : 1.6
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3 . INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

.Computer ‘ '
software Licences
: : o . (Note (i) (Note (ii) - Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 - ' . - ) £m ] £m £m
Cost: : ' . : :
At 1 January 2018 . — ' _ 12.5 - 12.5 .
Additions - o - o : 1.5° - 15 .-
Transfers from |berdrola group compames o - . : - 9.5 9.5
Disposals ’ ] N : ‘ (2.9) - (2.9)
At 31 December 2018~ ' B ’ C 11.1 9.5 - 20.6
Amortisation: . . o . , :
At 1 January 2018 ‘ T . 11.1 - 11.1
~ Amortisation for the year o - : 0.8 - 0.8
_ Transfers from |berdrola group companles N T ' ' - 39 39
Disposals . .. ' o - (2.8) - (2.8)
At 31 December 2018 © . . e .91 3.9. 13.0
" Net book value: ‘ o - )
At 31 December 2018 e . 2.0 5.6 7.6
At 1 January 2018 B o : 1.4 - 1.4

(i} The cost of fully amortised computer software still in use at 31 December 2018 was £6.9 million (2017 £9.5 million).
(ii) Licences with a gross cost of £9.5 million and amortlsatlon of £3.9 mrlllon were transferred into the company from ScottushPower Generation

Limited, a fellow Ibérdrola group company.

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT _
{a) Movements in property, plant and equipment

Other items of
property, plant

C ) ' ’ Gas and equipment
! storage inuse .
. , facilities (Note (i)) Total
 Year ended 31 December 2017. S , ) * fm £m " fm
“Cost: - ' - - - ,
At1January2017 = - . A B 23.8 1.1 ©24.9
Disposals - - . o : : . (0.1) (0.4) {0.5)
At 31 December 2017 - K . .23.7 0.7 . 24.4
Depreciation: ) i : . .
At 1 January 2017 ' ‘ ‘ o oo 121 0.4 . 125
Depreciation for the year . o . 0.6 - .0.6
Disposals - . - - {0.4) (0.4)
At 31 December 2017 ) ’ 12.7 - 12.7
Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 - . ) .o : . 110 " 0.7 -11.7
At 1 January 2017 R ‘ S ‘ . 11.7 . 0.7 © 124
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT contmued
- (a) Movements in property, plant and equipment continued .
. - ' - Other items of
property, plant

L Gas + “jnd equipment
. Storage ’ in use .
: : o - facilities ' (Note(i)) ~ ~  Total
" Year ended 31 December 2018 : ) £m . fm £m
Cost: - _ S o e ) o . o
- At1January 2018 . . . o . ' 23.7 e 0.7 24.4
Transfers to Iberdrola group companies (Note (i) . ’ ) (23.7) 07 (24.4)
Transfers from Iberdrola group compames (Note (||1) . ) : . 355 - 1.0 - 36.5 -
At'31 December 2018 . . . ' ; " 35.5 B - 1.0 : 36.5
Depreciation: . ' AT . oo s e
At1January 2018 A s S S 127 ‘ - 12.7.
‘Depreciation for the year ‘ ‘ ' , 04 - . 04
Transfers to Iberdrola group companies (Note (i) - ‘ - (13.0) ‘ - (13.0)
Transfers from Iberdroia group companies (Note (iii)) ‘ C ' 15.5 - 155
Impalrment (Note (iv)) ~ ) - ) ' ’ - 3.2 - 3.2.
At 31 December 2018 : . - . - 18.8 4 ' - 18.8
Net book value: : .
.At 31 December 2018 v S © 167 . . 1.0 . 177
At 1 January 2018 ) ’ - . 11.0 - 0.7 11.7

(i) The'category ‘Other items of property, plant and.equipment in use’ principally comprises computer equipment and land.

(i) On 1 July 2018, the company transferred gas storage facilities to ScottishPower Generation Limited, a fellow Iberdrola group company..The assets
were transferred at a gross cost of £24.4 million and accumulated depreciation of £13.0 million.

{iii) On 30 November 2018, ScottishPower-Generation Limited, a fellow Iberdrola: group company, transferred gas storage facnlltles (including cushion
gas) and other items of property, plant and equlpment to the company at a gross cost of £36.5 million and accumulated depréciation of £15.5
million.

{iv) The impairment charge of £3.2 million made during the vear ended 31 December 2018 compnsed write offs of gas storage assets.

{v) Included within the cost of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2018 are assets in use not subject to depreciation, being land and
cushlon gas, of £7.0 m|II|on (2017 £1.3 million). . .

(b) Operating lease arrangements .
2018 2017 .

(i) Operating lease payments’ - T - . R ) £m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognlsed as.an expense in the year ’ ) - : 0.1

The operating ‘lease charge for the current.year was £20,000.

“The future minimum discounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

o _ o : e " 2018 2017
(i) Operating lease commitments o . : : : “£m © fm
Within one'year ‘ o ‘ " 01 - 01
Between oné€ and five years . ’ E S 0.2 . 703
More than five years L ‘ ' 05 . 0.8

’ 0.8 1.2

The company leases various property, plant and equipment under non-cancellable o’perating~lease agreements. The leases Ahave Varyiné terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The effect of lmtlally applying IFRS 9 on the company’s Accounts is deta:led in Note 181.2. Due to the transition method -
: chosen, comparative information has not been presented to reflect the new requirements.

(a) Carrying value of fmancnal mstruments
The table below sets out the carrymg amount and fair value of the company s fmanual mstruments that are- wnthm the

) _scope of IFRS 9.

.2018. . : 2017

- Carrying Fair ) o Carrying = Fair Lo

) amount wvalue - CIaséiﬁt'ztion amount . value ’ Classification
Notes . _-€m . fm under IFRS 9 £m £m under 1AS 39

Financial assets _ : : o .
: : ] ) . . Fair value hedging - Fair value hedgir\g
Derivative financial instruments ) (i) 177.4 177.4 instrument ~ 119.2 119.2 instrument
Receivables N ()] 563.3 . 563.3 ' " Amortised cost 599.0 599.0 Loa ns and Receivables

Financial liabilities

L A Fair value hedging o *  Fair value hedging
Derivative financial instruments i) {103.0) . (103.0) instrument (64.1) . (64.1) instrumént
Loans and other borrowings (i) (108.7) " (108.7) Amortised cost (44.6) (44.6) Loans and'Receivables
Payables ) Gy - (379.6) (379.6) _ Amortised cost __ (431.0) (431.0) Loans and Receivables

The carrying amount of these financial instruments is calculated as set out in Note 2G. The carrymg value of financial
instruments is a reasonablé approximation of fair value.

(i} Further detail on derivative financial instruments is disclosed in Note 5(c).

(ii) Balances outwith the scope of IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 have been excluded namely prepayments other tax recelvables and other taxes and social
security. .

(iii) The fair value of loans and borrowmgs is calculated using a dlscounted cash flow.

(b) Measurement of fmancral instruments’

The company holds certain financial instruments which are measured in the balance sheet at fair value as detalled in
Note 5(a) above. The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and dlsclosmg the fair value of financial
- instruments by valuation technique: :

’ ,Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Techniques which use |nputs WhICh have a 5|gn|f|cant ‘effect.on the recordéd fa|r value that are not based on '
_observable market data . '

In both the current and prior year all derivatives. held by the company are Level 2. Included in Level 2 Ilabllltles of £103.0
mllllon (2017 £64.1 million) are inseparable third-party credlt enhancements These have been reflected in the fair value
~ measurement of the liability.

" Level 2 commodity derivatives are falr valued by comparlng and duscountlng the difference between the expected
contractual cash flows for the relevant commodities and the quoted prices for those commadities in"an active market.
Level 2 forelgn exchange derivatives comprlse forward foreign exchange contracts. Forward foreign exchange contracts
are fair valued usmg forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market.

The company recognlses transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the.end of the repomng perlod during
which the ¢hange occufred. There were no transfers in the current or prior year: : .

8
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" NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(c) Analysis of derivative financial instruments — carrying value

2018 4 2017
‘ Assets * Liabilities Assets * Liabilities
Non- Non- ° Non-. Non-
Current , curren.t Current current Current. cu'rrent Cu'rren't current
v : fm __ £m £m fm_ £fm £m £m - £m

. Hedging derivatives - . j ) )
Commodity derivatives- 1124 373 (68.3) " (8.6) 46.2 20.4 (10.6) (1.2)

* Non-hedging derivatives - . o . '
Foreign exchange rate derivatives 0.1 - - - - - - -
Commodity derivatives 326.7 T 04 (324.) (1.5) 298.3 17 . (2984) . (13)

Total gross derivatives 439.2 37.7 (392.4) (10.1) 3445 22.1  (309.0) - (2.5).
" ‘Impact of netting - (293.0) (6.5) "293.0" 6.5 (245.4) (2.0) 245.4. 2.0
Total net derivatives 146.2 ©  31.2 (99.4) (3.6) . 99.1 20.1 (63.6) (0 5)

(i) _Certain derivative financial instruments are presented net on the balance sheet. A reconc:llatlon between the gross and net posmon is prowded in.

Note 5(d). .

© o (d) Offsettmg of f'nanaal assets and financial liabilities

The company is eligible to present financial assets and financial llabllltles net on the balance sheet as descrlbed in Note
2G1.3(d). The following table provides information on the impact of offsetting on the company-balance sheet as well as -
the fmanaal impact of the nettlng of certain instruments in the event ‘of default or similar agreements.

2018

.Gross amounts

of recognised

-Related amounts not offset in balance sheet

Gross amounts financial Net amounts of
of recognised (liabilities)/ financial assets/
financial assets set off in (liabilities) Financial Cash collateral
assets/ the balance presented in the instruments (ne'bld)[posteq . Net
(liabilities) - sheet balance sheet (Note (i)}  (Notes (ii) and (iii)) amount
.o £m fm . £m £m £m - £m
Financial assets o . T
Receivables 906.2 (342.9) - 563.3 (34.6) ] (29.9) 498.8
Derivative financial instruments . 476.9 (299.5) - - 177.4; (48.2) - 129.2
Finaricial liabilities S E :
Payables . (722.5) 3429 '(379..6) 34.6 299 (315.1) . )
Derivative financial instruments {402.5) 299.5 {103.0) /48.2 - (54.8) -
2017
Related amounts not offset in balance sheet
Gross arn'ounts
of recognised
. Gross amounts financial -Netamounts of
“of recognised. (liabilities)/ ﬁnanpiel assets/
financial assets set offin’ (liabilities) Financial” Cash collateral
assets/ ‘the balance presented in the instruments (héld)/po'sted Net
(Iiabilities) ‘sheet balance sheet (Note (i})  (Notes (i) and (iii)) arno'unt'
£m £m ) £m £m’ £m T fm
Financial assets . )
Receivables 940.1 (341.1) 599.0 . (31.1) ) - (7.4) 560.5
Derivative financial instruments - 366.6 -(247.4) 119.2 (34.2) . ' - 85.0
Financial liabilities _ . . . o
Payables (772.1) 3411 (431.0) © 311 , 7.4 (392.5) .
Derivative financial instruments - (311.5) 247.4 (64.1) - 34.0 ‘ - (30.1)
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities continued

(i) Certain contracts for derivatives, receivables, and payables in relation to the purchase of gas do not currently meet the offsettlng criteria within 1AS
32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ (“IAS 32”), however in the event of default would be required to be offset per the requirements of the
contract, The balances on the previous page show the effect on the company if these contracts were also offset. Due to the nature of certain
contracts, it is not possible to split accurately the effect of offsetting these balances across the derivatives, receivables and payables categories. For
presentational purposes the impact has been allocated to receivables and payables as appropriate.

(i) The company enters into standard netting agreements with its commodltv trading counterpames in order to mitigate the credit risk exposure of

" the business. In addition, the company utilises collateral support agreements with derivative counterparties to manage its credit exposure. All

collateral is settled in cash. These forms of collateral include margmlng for trading with exchanges, cash collateral used for- bulateral and brokering
trading as well as letters of credit.

{iii} At 31 Décember 2018, the value of letters of credlt held amounted to £7.0 million (2017 £27.0 million) and Ietters of credlt posted amounted to
£29.0 million (2017 £50.5 mulhon) At 31 December 2018 the company also posted cash collateral of £29 9 million (2017 £7.4 million) in respect of
payables, of which £29.9 million (2017 £7.4 mllllon) can be offset against financial habllltres

(e) Financial risk management

The company’s prlnClpaI financial liabilities, excludmg denvatlve financial’ instruments, comprise loans and borrowings
and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The )
company-has trade and other receivables that arise directly from its operatlons The company also enters into derivative
contracts. :

:'The company has exposure to. the foIIowmg rusks arising from the above flnanC|aI mstruments

' i.‘ Credit risk; ’
i. Energy market risk; and
. iii. Treasury risk (comprising both IquIdlty and market rlsk) L -
. An extensive description of this risk management framework of ScottlshPower and therefore the company, can be found
in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

(l) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its contractual obhgatlons under a financial, mstrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
{primarily trade receivables and derivative financial mstruments) and from foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments.

- The é:arrying amount of.financ.ial assets represent the'max.imu‘m credit exposure to the company.

Credit risk management

The company is exposed to both settlement risk (defined as the risk of a counterparty failing to pay for energy and/or
services which have been delivered), as well as replacement risk (defined as the risk of i mcurrmg additional costs in order .
to replace asaleor purchase contract following a counterparty default). c

Further detalls on the credlt risk management strategy adopted for significant types of fmanC|aI asset are set out below

e Credit risk in respect ‘of external customers is mitigated by contracting with multiple counterparties and limiting

" exposure to individual counterparties to cIearIy defined limits based upon the risk of counterparty default.

¢ Credit risk from Iberdrola group companies is considered to be low as the company is part of the Iberdrola group s

" centralised treasury function and no Iberdrola.-group company has a credit rating lower. than BBB+ (m line with
Standard and Poor’s external credit ratings). - .

e The company considers that 100% of its credit risk associated with energy- -related derivatives can be considered to be
with coUnterparties in related energy industries, financial institutions operating in energy markets or fellow Iberdrola-
group companies. At the counterparty level the company employs specific eligibility criteria in determining
appropriate limits for each prospective counterparty and supplements this with netting and collateral agreements
lncludmg margining, guarantees, letters of credit and cash deposits where appropriate.

Trade recelvables (lncludmg trade recelvables due from Iberdrola group campames)

The company uses the simplified model to measure ECLs for all trade receivables. The provision rates represent a ||fet|me ’
ECL and are based on the Iberdrola groups historical Ioss expenence and default rates.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
{(e) Financial risk management continued
(i) Credit risk continued -
_Credit risk management continued
Trade receivables (including trade recelvables due from Iberdrola group. compames} continued

‘ The table below illustrates the ECLon Trade receivables: : .
Ageing of

l trade receivables
Greater
0-6 than 6-
’ . : . months.  months Total
As at 31 December 2018 ' o . ' £m . £m £m
Weighted Average Expected Loss Rate (%) o B : . 02% .. - 0.2% .
Gross carrying value . . . . . 5082 . 55.9 564.1
Loss allowance - - . , ’ (0.8) - (0.8)
Net carrying value ‘ ) .~ 507.4 55.9 '563.3 .
Ageing of
‘trade receivables
Greater .
- 0-6 than 6
. , : months months - . Total
Asat1January2018 ' ‘ ' . £m £m £m
- Weighted Average Expected Loss Rate (%) 4 ' g S 02% - ©0.2%
Gross carrying value o 559.9 39.1 599.0 -
Loss allowance . . . . . . . (0.9) - - (0.9)
Net carrying value ' R ) e 559.0 39.1 598.1

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery Indlcators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in.a repayment plan with
the company. .

) Refer to the table below reconciling the movement in the opening to the closing loss allowance. .

S ecurity for trade ‘receivables .

For some trade receivables the company may obtain securlty in the form of guarantees, or letters of credit Wthh can be
called upon if the counterparty is in default under the terms of the agreement (refer to Note 5(d)). The company does .
not otherW|se requrre collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

Reconciliation of opening to closing loss allowance h .
The closing loss allowances for all financial assets measured at amortlsed cost as at 31 December 2018 reconcrles to the

“opening loss allowances as follows: _
' _Trade

receivables

. _ 3 ‘ £m

Balance as at 31 December 2017 under IAS39- . ‘ : . ’ -
Adjustment-on initial application of IFRS 9 ' ) 0.9
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 o ' , o 0.9
Decrease in loss allowance recognised in the income statement - - L ) (0.1)
At 31 December 2018 ) . . - . : © 0.8

The decrease in the loss allowance of £0.1 million from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 is directly related to the faII
in the gross carrying-value of trade receivables.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(e} Financial risk management continued

(ii) Energy market risk - .

Throughout 2018 and the prlor year the company was exposed to market risk associated with fluctuations in the market
price of electricity and generation fuel compounded by volumetric risk caused by unplanned changes in the load and
output of the portfolio of generation assets. Going forward the company will continue to be exposed to ‘market risk,
however given the sale of the generatlon assets volumetric risk will no Ionger be |mpacted by fluctuatnons in anticipated
plant output. :

Energy market risk management '

The risk management policies are |mp|emented at the business IeveI wnth the overslght of the group’s Boards

management teams and the independent risk management function. ScottishPower and therefore the company uses a
number of risk measurement procedures and techniques to ensure that risk is kept within pre-approved limits. The key
measures.are stop loss limits and volume exposure by tenor limits. All-valuation models are reviewed and approved by
the independent group Risk Management function on an ongding basis, including changes to assumptions and model
inputs. Changes that could have had sngnlflcant impact on the Accounts required additional review and approval by the
appropriate Boards. ’ .

Durmg 2018 and the prior year the Risk Management function employed addltlonal techmques such as VaR, to assist in -

measurlng risk within the volume exposure by tenor limits. VaR is a key measure of the potential fmancnal loss on a price

o _exposure position over. a defined ‘period to a given level of .confidence. VaR computations for ScottishPower’s energy -

commodity portfolios were based -on a historical simulation technique,-which utilised historical' energy market forward
. price curve changes to estimate the potential unfavourable impact of price changes in the portfolio positions. The

) quantlflcatnon of -market risk using-VaR provided a consistent measure of risk and sensitivity across ScottlshPowersA

continually changing portfolio, however, VaR was not necessarily. indicative .of actual results that may occur. Future
changes in markets inconsistent with historical data or assumptions used ¢ould ¢ause variation iri actual results to exceed
-predicted ranges. ScottishPower’s VaR computations for its energy commodity portfolio utilised several key assumptions,
. including a 99% confidence level for the resultant price changes and a holding period of five business days. VaR, while
‘'sensitive to changes in portfoho volume, does not account for commodity volume risk. Commodity volume risk is defined
as the possibility that a change'in the supply of, or demand. for the commodity will create an unexpected imbalance and
change the requnrements for the commodity. e :

The application of the VaR methodology evolved to include the total forecasted volumes for the generation assets and
retail contracts to provide a more accurate measure of the risk associated wnth the volume exposure by tenor llmlts
ScottishPower’s VaR measures are shown in the table below

2018 .2017.
. . £m . - £m
VaR : ' . : » A 20.3 . 285
Average VaR over prior year ] , o . 21.9 ) - 311
Maximum VaR over prior year , ‘ ' ‘ a 33.6 466
Minimum VaR over prior year . 0 A . : 11.8 16.3

Hedging of energy market risk

The strategy of the ‘business is to mitigate the economic rlsks assouated with purchase of fuel and supply of electricity
and natural gas to end users in both the wholesalé (up until 31 December 2018) and retail markets. From a reporting
‘perspective. the objective is to report earnings results that are consistent with its operational strategies and hence
recognise the earnings effect of financial and non-financial derivative transactions exeouted to hedge economic business
risks in the same period in which the hedged operatnonal activity impacts earnings. The aim is.to minimise earnings
volatility, which would otherwise be present as a result of fair valumg all derlvatlve contracts under IFRS 9. To achieve
this objective, where effectiveness documentation and reporting requirements are met, cash flow hedge accounting is
applied by designation of a series of derivative trades and deferring in eqwty the fair value chahges of open, derivative
positions until the perlod in wh|ch the forecast transactions occur. . :
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5  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

-{e} Financial risk management continued
(ii) Energy market risk continued
Hedgmg of energy market risk continued . .
Cash flow hedgmg strategies are ‘developed for each of the electrlcrty, natural gas, and carbon allowances portfolios to
hedge the varlablllty in cash flows associated with changes in the market price of each commodity. Forward: (fixed
pnce/flxed volume) contracts are designatéd as hedging instruments in the electricity, gas, and carbon hedges.

Commodity cash flow hedges - :

Certain commodity derivative instruments do not quallfy for hedge accounting. Changes in the falr value of any
derivative instrument that does not qualify.for hedge accounting are recognised inmimediately in the. income statement
and are included in Procurements. For an analysis of the split of the carrying value of hedging and non-hedging
commodity derivatives' refer to Note 5(c). The amounts relating to commodity derivatives designated as hedging

instruments during the year are detailed in the table below: .
: . e 2018 2017

Hedging Hedging

derivatives . derivatives

. . . " Notes ) £m . £m

Notional amount : _ : . 1,844.4 : " 519.5

Carrying amount - asset ' 4 . {a) 149.7 . 66.6

Carrying amourit - liability o L (a) (76.9) B (11.8)
Changes in the value of the-hedging instrument recognised inOCl - (b) " {18.0) (8.5) -

. Hedge ineffectiveness mcome/(cost) recognised in the income statement ' © - 22 - (0.2)

Amiount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to income statement (d) - (135.6) .~ 54

(a) The carrying amount of derivative assets and liabilities are recorded within Derivative financial instruments.
(b) This is consistent with the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument used to calculate ineffectiveness.
» (c) The hedge ineffectiveness income/(cost) recognlsed through the income statement of £2.2 million (2017 (£0.2) million) is included within
Procurements.
(d) The amount reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the income statement of £135 6 million (2017 (£5.4) million) is recorded within Gross
: margm

' The amounts at the r_eporting date relating to commodity items desighated as'hedged items were as follows.

Change in fair value. - " Cash flow

! used for calculating - hedge reserve
hedge ineffectiveness: balance = .
: 2018 2017 2018 2017
Line item in the Accounts in whlch the hedged item is/will be included . £m £m £m £m
" " Gross margin . B e 180 85 735 . 60.8

The assessment of effectiveness of all hedging relationships currently in place is carried out on a monthly basis as part of
. the financial reporting cycle. Prospective assessment is carried out at mceptlon of the hedge and on an ongoing basis to
verify thatthe hedge remains effectlve

The company determines that the economic relationship between the hedging instrumenht (the commodity derivative)
and the hedged item.(the commodity purchases) will virtually always achieve 100% effectrveness Thls is because the
~ forecast commodlty transaction is implicit within- the derivative-itself. .

Ineffectiveness will arise if the trade has been cancelled, in which case there would be no-future transaction. In such-
circumstances, the trade and the hedge would be eliminated -from the Accounts. Ineffectiveness will also arise |f the
company receive notification that the business have been unable to abtain a reliable price forecast from market sources.
or |f there is a change to the group Risk Management Strategy. -
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUM'ENTS continued

S ()] Financial risk management contmued

* (ii) Energy market risk continued

Sensitivity analysis on commodity prices .
The sensntlwty on the company s results to changes in the market prices of the maln commodities are as follows:

2018 ) : ' . 2017

Impaci ~ Impact S Impact Impact

on profit on equity .~ onprofit on equity

: before _ before . before before

' . Variationin® - taxes ‘taxes : Variation taxes" taxes
Commadity : . price fm £m in price “£m £m
Gas o ) o ‘ ; +5% 0.1 24.2 ©. +5% .. (0.1) 120
L ' . 5% . (0.1) (242) 5% - 01 ~  (12.0)
Electricity +5% - 415 . 45% 16 84
‘ o S 5% - c'(a1s8) T 5% (1.6) (8.4)
Carbon Dioxide (CO2) ' T T +5% - - S +5% . - - 02

' - - 5% - - - 5% - (02)

(iii) Treasury risk
Treasury risk is comprlsed of liquidity I'ISk and market risk. ScottishPower’s cash management and short-term financing

activity, and ;herefore_that of the company, is m,tegrated with Ib_erdroIaAs.‘ The company produces short-term rolling .
cash-flow requirements and if necessary any required funding is-obtained via the group’s credit facilities already in place.

Treasury |IQUIdItV risk management - :
ScottishPower’s liquidity position and short-term ﬁnancmg activities, and therefore that of the company, are mtegrated

and aligned with Iberdrola’s. Liquidity risk, the risk that the company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities, is
managed by:Iberdrola group Treasury, who are responsible for arranging banking facilities on behalf of ScottishPower,
~ and therefore the company.'SPL is the counterparty for the loan balance due from the company.

The tables below summarise the maturlty profile of the company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December based on-
contractual undiscounted payments. : :

Financial liabilities (ex'cluding commodity derivatives) .

2018 :
: : ) - 2024 and
. . . 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 thereafter Total
Cash outflows . T . Notes £fm £m £m £m £m fm £m
Derivative financial instruments o o - ’ :
(excluding commodity derivatives) - (@ - 51 .- - ) - - - 5.1
Loans and other borrowings : 108.9 ’ - - - . - - 1089 °
Payables . . -~ (b) 323.4 - 5.8 50.2 - - A - -379.4
© . 4374 . 58" 502 - - - 4934
2017 . .
) . ) ) ) . 2023and -
. 2018 ~ 2019 -+ 2020 2021 . 2022 thereafter  Total-
Cash outflows Notes JEm £m £m £m £m £m £m
" Derivative financial instruments ' L. . B
(excluding commodity derivatives) A @ 02 - - - - - 02
Loans and other borrowings - - . 45.0 .- - - ) - - 450
Payables (b} 3914 8.7 5.2 253 - ) - 430.6
' - ‘ ' 436.6 8.7 52  -253 - - 4758 .

{a) The above liquidity analysis is stated after the impact of counterparty netting (f_efer to Note 5(d)).
(b) Contractual cash flows exclude accrued inter-iest as these cash flows are included within loans and other borrowings.
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS contmued

(e) Financial risk management continued

(iii) Treasury risk continued .

. Financial liabilities (excluding commodity denvatlves) continued .

The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table on the previous page reflect market forward interest
rates at the reportmg date and these amounts may change as market mterest rates change.-

The future cash flows on derlvatave instruments (including commodity derivatives below) may be dlfferent from the
amounts in the table as interest rates and exchange rates of the relevant conditions underlylng the calculation change
'Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that the cash flows mcluded in the maturity analysis could-occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly dlfferent amounts.. .

Commodity denvatlves , :

‘The company believes the liquidity risk associated with-commodity derlvatlves needs to be considered in conjunction
with the profile of payments in relation to all derivative contracts rather than only those in a liability position. It should
be noted that cash flows associated with future energy sales and commodlty contracts-which are not IFRS 9 fmancnal
mstruments are not included in this analysis, which is prepared in accordance with IFRS 7.

, 2024 and

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 thereafter - Total
) . . “fm - fm. - £m . £fm £m fm- - £fm .

Net cash outflows Lo : 891.0 265.4 50.6 23 - S -~ 1,209.3

2017
: . 2023 and

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 thereafter =~ Total

fm fm fm - fm = fm £m fm .

Net cash outflows : 1918 1409 389 . 45 - - 3761
Details of the company’s contractual commitments aré given in Note 22.

Treasury market risk management . .

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from changes in market rates (|nterest rates and foreign currency) Within the
Treasury function ScottishPower, and therefore the company, utilises a number of financial instruments to manage
|nterest rate and fore;gn currency exposures. :

Interest rate risk .
In order to adequately manage and limit this risk, the Iberdrola group annually determines the desired structure of the’ '
debt between fixed and floating interest rate, taking into accoint the indexing of income either interest rate or price
index. ScottishPower Treasury then take actions over the course of the year to work towards these desired Iberdrola -
group ratios. Actions to be carried out over the course of a year may include obtaining new sources of flnanClng (at a

fixed, ﬂoatnng or indexed rate) and/or utilising interest rate derlvatlves : ’

All of the ‘company's toans and borrowings are claséified as variable rate debt and are held at amortised cost. The

reference interest rate for the floatmg rate borrowmgs of £108.7 million (2017 £44.6 million) is the Bank of England Base
Rate (“Base”). .
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

(e) Financial risk management continued
(iii) Treasury risk continued '
Interest rate risk continued

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate changes - :
The table below illustrates the impact on the annual mterest rate charge con5|der|ng various rate changes. The anaIyS|s
. assumes all other factors remain constant.

Impacton - Impact on

e r " interest rate = interest rate

s : . ' Interest: Change charges in 2018 charges in 2017

Debt Category : Rate _in rate C £m ' fm
Short-term variable rate Base - +0.25% - 03 - _ 0.1
- o - -0.25% : (03 - (0.1)
+0.50% - 0.5 S 02

- 0.50% (0.5) (0.2)

Foreign currency risk . .
The company is exposed to transactlonal foreign currency risk to the extent that theré is a mismatch between the

currencies in" which purchases are denominated. The currency in which these transactions are primarily denominated is
Euro. ScottishPower board policy stipulates that there should be no sngnlflcant exposure to foreign currency balances and
- therefore Treasury will hedge all foreign ‘currency payments whlch have a (cumulatlve) value greater than a sterling
equivalent of a ‘quarter- of a mllllon pounds . :
Hedgmg of forergn currency risk . ’
The company uses foreign currency forwards to hedge its exposure to.foreign currency rlsk Under the company’s pohcy
the critical terms of the forwards must align with the hedged items. For such |tems the company de5|gnates the entire
value of the forelgn currency forward in the hedge relationship. :

Some foreign exchange contracts do not satisfy the requirements for hedge_accountiné {economic hedges) under IFRS 9.
These foreign currency forwards are subject to the same risk management policies as all other derivative contracts.
. However, they are accounted for as held for.trading with gains (losses) recognised in the income statement.

" Foreign exchange rate cash flow hedges :
Hedgmg of comimadity purchases: Where commodities are priced in a currency other than Sterling, the foreign.exchange
risk may be hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts These are designated as cash flow hedges where they

comply with the reqwrements of IFRS 9.

2018 ‘ 2017
~ Hedging ~ Hedging
derivatives . derivatives

- Notes " fm - " fm.
. Notional amount . ~ . 2.5 - 31
Carrying amount - asset - . : " (a) - -
Changes in the value of the hedging instrument recogmsed in 0C1" (b) - 0.1
Amount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve to income statement () .. 0.3 T (0.5)

(a) The carrying amount of derlvatlve assets are recorded within Derivative financial instruments. The value of forelgn exchange contracts classified as

hedging derivatives was less than £0.1 million in both years.
(b} This is consistent with the change in the fair value of the hedging mstrument used to calculate ineffectiveness.
(c) The amount reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve to the income statement is recorded within Gross margin £0. 3 million (2017 (EO 5

million)).
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5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

{e) Financial risk management continued

(iii) Treasury risk continued

Foreign exchange raté cash flow hedges continued

The amounts at the reporting date relatmg to foreign exchange items desrgnated as hedged |tems were as follows:

Change in fair value - Cash flow
" used for calculating hedge reserve
hedge ineffectiveness balance A
- . 2018 - 2017 2018 2017
Line item in the Accounts i in whlch the hedged item |s/W|II be mcluded : £m © £fm £m £m -
Gross margln ) L ) ’ - (0.1) (0.4) (0.3)

_The company determines that the economic relationship between the hedging instrument (the foreign exchange rate .
forward contract) and the hedged item (the commodity purchase) will virtually always achieve 100% effectiveness. This is .
because the company compares movements in the fair value of the expected highly probable forecast foreign currency
cash flows, with movements in the fair value of the expected changes in cash flows from the hedgmg instrument.
Forecast future foreign currency cash flows are Iargely based upon contractual obligations.

Ineffectiveness.will arise if the forward contract has been cancelled, in which case there would be no future transa‘ction.
Ineffectiveness will also. arise if the company receive notification that the business has been unable to obtain a reliable
. price forecast from market sources or if thereis a change to the group Risk Management Strategy.

Hedge assessment on foreign currency derivatives -

Hedge assessment on foreign currency derivatives is done prospectively to verify that the forecast transactions are still-
' highly probable of occurring (for cash flow hedges) as'weII as retrospectively, to assess the effectiveness in the period

under réview. Prospective assessment is performed using sensitivity analysis and critical terms matching.

Sensitivity analysis on forergn currency cash flows .
No sensitivity analysis has been performed in relation to changes i in foreign exchange rates as almost all foreign currency
purchases are hedged. Therefore there is immaterial financial exposure. Any movement in the value of the hedged item
would be compensated for by movement in the value of the hedging instrument.

6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017 .
Notes £m £m .
Current receivables:. , : Lo . .
Receivables due from iberdrola group companies - trade N YN (5] .357.2 ° 4750
] Trade receivables and accrued income Lo : - ({a), (b), {c) 150.2 84.9
Prepayments : o ' 10.2 ) 0.1
Other tax receivables ' ' 100 13.0
. - ) ’ - 517.6 573.0
Non-current receivables: o ’ ) .
Receivables due from Iberdrola group companies - trade (a) - 55.9 © . .391
- ] : ' ) 55.9 - 39.1

(a) Information about the company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables is included in Note 5.
(b) Certain trade receivables are presented net on thé balance sheet when the offsetting criteria under IAS 32 are met (refer to Note 2G1.3(d)). A
reconciliation between the gross and net position is provided in Note 5(d). L
{c) Trade and’other receivables include £409.8 million of IFRS 15 receivables (refer to Note 14(c)) .
(d) -Trading terms are governed by Industry Standard agreements which typrcally provide for interest to be charged where payments are not made on
-the specified settlement date.  ~
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7 INVENTORIES. , C
s 2018 - . 2017

) .- . . Notes - . fm fm
Fuel stocks - co Co - . . T fa)(b) - 154 10.6
‘Emissions allowances - : o . _ " 0.8 0.3’

162 10.9 -

(a) Inventories with a value of £11.3 million (2017 £13 6 million) were recognised.as an expense during the year.
(b) On 1 July 2018 the company transferred inventories with a value of £4.0 million to ScottishPower Generation Limited, a fellow Iberdrola group
company. On the 30 November 2018 ScomshPower Generatlon L|m|ted transferred mventones of £15.3 million to the company .

8 S'HARE_‘CAPITA"L : ’ SRR _ ,
o ' - ' 2018 : 2017
" Em o . fm

AIIotted called up and fully paid shares _ . . .

50,000,000.ordinary shares of £1 each (2017 50, 000 000) - : . ’ 50.0 . 50.0

(a) Holders of these ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time; amounts on the capitalisation of profits and reserves; and
notice and attendance at general meetings of the company, with every member entitled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll one vote for
every share held = I

g * ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDER OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY -
MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Hedge =~ ' Retained

Share reserve  earnings )
capital . {Note (3)) (Note (b)) . . Total
s - : . £m - £m £m "~ - £m
At 1 January 2017 o ‘ o . .50.0 © 251 1294 2045
Loss for the year attributable to equity holder of ) ’ ’
ScottishPower Energy Management Limited : - - © (25.8) (25.8)

: .Changes in the value of cash flow hedges ’ - 29.2 e - 29.2
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - . (5.5) o (5.5)
At 1January 2018 i . o 50.0 © 488 . 1036 - 2024

" Adjustments due to IFRS 9 e : - . - o (07) {0.7)

* Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 o "500 48.8 102.9 T 2017
Loss for'the year attributable to equity holder of - T ' .

" - ScottishPower Energy Management Limited . o - - L (9.2) 19.2)
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges v e . 128 - 12.8
Tax relating to cash flow hedges / - . - (2.4) - .- (2.4)
Dividends . E S - - - (20.0) (20.0)
At 31 December 2018 B . ) ' 50 0 59.2 . 73. 7 -182.9

(a) The hedge reserve represents the balance of gains and losses- on cash flow hedges (net of taxatlon) not yet transferred to the income statement

or the carrying amount of a non-financial asset.
(b) Retained earnings comprise the cumulative balance of proflts and Iosses recogmsed in_the financial- statements as adjusted for transactions with

‘sharehdlders, principally dividends.
Ae) The changes in the hedge reserve arising from valuatlon adjustments to hedging derivatives are set out overleaf
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9 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDER OF SCOTTISHPOWER’ ENERGY

MANAGEM ENT LIMITED contmued

22

. Foreign
Commodity  ‘exchange Grossvalue . .
o . ) i hedges rate hedges "of hedges Tax effect Total'
Cash flow hedges - ’ £m. £m £m £m £m
© At1January 2017 : T ‘ 314 (0.2) . - 312 (6.1) 25.1
Effective cash flow hedges recognlsed N . 23.8 03 241 (4.6) '19.5
De-designated cash flow hedges - - ' 1 - 0.2 - 02 B . . 0.2
Removed from equity and recognised in income statement . 5.4 - (0.5) 4.9 (0.9) . 4.0
At 1 January 2018 . o : -~ 60.8 (0.4) 60.4 (11.6)° - 488
Effectlve cash flow hedges recognised - ) -+ . 1505 (0.2) 150.3 (30.1) -120.2
De -designated cash flow hedges ' : 2.2 » - . (2.2) 0.4 (1.8)
Removed.from equity and recognised in income statement © (135.6) 0.3 (135:3)' ' 271 - (108.2),
Changes in future tax rates . ' : - - -- 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2018 ‘ . 73.5 (0.3) 73.2 (14.0) - 59.2
(d) The maturity analysis of amounts included in the hedge reserve is as fellows:
2018 2017
. . fm o fm .
" Less than 1 year '35.9- 331
1-2 years 21.1 13.0
2-3 years .23 24
3-4 years ‘ - (0.1) 0.3
59.2 48.8
10 PROVISIONS
LAt . At
1 January New 31 December -
. : 2017 provisions 2017
Year ended 31 December 2017 Note £m £m - £m
Reorganisation and restructuring {a) - 0.1 0.1
Transfers
. from
At ' Iberdrola Utilised At
1 January New . group during 31 December
. . 2018 pro\)isions " companies - year 2018
Year ended 31 December 2018 . Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Reorganisation and restructuring - {a) 0.1 1.1 - (0.2) 1.0
‘Decommissioning and environmental b)’ S - - 1.2 - 1.2
] 0.1 1.1 1.2 (0.2)
: 2018 2017
Analy515 of total provnsmns £fm fm
Non-current 1.2 -
Current 1.0 0.1
2.2 0.1

(a) The "provision for reorganisation and restructunng in.2017 was utullsed in 2018. The new provision of £1.1 m|II|on for reorganisation and

restructaring in 2018 is expécted to be utilised in 2019.

(b) The decommissioning and ehvironmental provision of £1.2 million was transferred to the company from ScottishPower Generation Limited on 30

November 2018 and is expected to be utilised by 2035.
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11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

- 2017

2018
. ] : ~ Notes © £m £m
Current trade and other payables: ‘
Payables due tao Iberdrola group cbmpanies trade - 9.5 124.4
Payables due to lberdrola group companres interest . 0.2 0.4
.Trade payables _ , A ' T ) (o) 312.7 1265.9
Other taxes and social security ‘ . 0.2 0.2
Capital payables and accruals 02 0.1
" Other payables ‘ 1.0 1.0
323.8- 392.0
Non-current other payables ) )
Payables due to Iberdrola group compames trade 55.9 39.1
Other 'payables’ - 0.1 - 0.1
56.0 39.2

" " (a) Trade payables include amounts due on commaodity activities.

. (b) Certain trade payables-and receivables are presented net on the balance sheet when offsettmg criteria under |AS 32 are met (refer to Note

2G1.3(d)). A reconciliation-between the gross and net provision is provided at Note 5(d).

{c) On30 November 2018 £0.1 million of trade and other payables were transferred into the company from ScottrshPower Generation erated

12 DEFERRED TAX -
Deferred tax provided in the Accounts is as follows:

Property, Derivative Other

~ plantand financial  temporary S L

equipment instruments  differences Total .
. L Notes fm - £m " £fm £fm
At 1January 2017 . . : : .16 11.8° = 134
Credit to the income statement - R - (3.9) - (3.9)
Recorded in the statement of comprehensive i income C - 5.5 - 5.5
At 1January 2018 - . . . ) " 1.6 134 - 15.0
Adjustments due to IFRS9 - . ~ . - - (0.2) (0.2)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 . . o 1.6 13.4 (0.2) 14.8
Credit to the income statement (0.7) (0.1) (0.2) - (1.0
Recorded in the statement of comprehenswe income ' - 24 B - 24
“Transfers to lberdrola group companies - (a) C(1.4) - - .. (1.4)
Transfers from Iberdrola group companies s {b) 2.3 - - 2.3
At 31 December 2018 S - ] . 718 15.7 {0.4) 17.1

{a) On 1 July 2018 the company transferred a deferred tax liability of £1.4 mrll:on to ScomshPower Generation errted

{b) On 30 November-2018 the company acquired a deferred tax Ilablllty of £2.3 million following the ‘transfer of assets and Ilabllltles from

ScottishPower Generation errted

Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporation Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. This reduces the tax rates expected to apply when"

temporary dlfferences reverse and |mpacts the deferred tax charge.

13 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS . )
{a) Analysis of loans and other borrowings by instrument and maturity

2017 -

. 2018
Instrument ) . Interest rate* - _ Maturity £m £m
. Loans with Iberdrola group companles Base + 1% .~ . Ondemand . 108.7 44.6

" *Bage - Bank of England Base Rate
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13 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS contlnued

{b) Reconcrhatron of movements of liabilities to cash flows arlsmg from f'nancmg actrvmes

Current liabilities -

Loans and other Interest
borrowmgs payable ) Total
: : : £m £m £m
"At 1 January 2017 41 0.6. 4.7
Increase in amounts due to iberdrola group companies 40.5 - 40.5
Interest paid . - (0.6) B {0.6)
Total movements from financing cashflows 40.5 (0.6) 39.9:
Other movements B 0.4 0.4
Total liability-related movements - 0.4 0.4
At 31 December 2017 44.6 0.4 45.0
Current liabilities
Loans and other Interest
_ borrowings payable " Total
£m . £fm - . £m
‘At1January 2018 . 44.6 - 04 45.0 -
Increase in.amounts due to’ Iberdrola group companies - ' 64.1 - T 641 '
Interest paid - (0.4) (0.4)
Total movements from f‘nancrng cash flows 64.1 - (0.4) 63.7
Other movements , 0.2 --0.2
Total liability-related movements - 0.2 0.2
At 31 December 2018 ' 108.7 0.2 108.9
(c) Borrowmg facilities . ‘
The company has no undrawn committed borrowrng facilities at 31 December 2018 (2017 £n|I)
14 REVENUE
The effect of mntlally applymg IFRS 15 on the company’s Accounts is detailed in Note 1B1. 1
(a) “Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 -
' ‘ ' 2018
Note £m
Commodity derivative income - (i) 2,8479
Supply of wholesale electricity 910.0
Supply of wholesale gas . 995.2
Other - 84.2
‘ 4,837.3 -

(i) Commodity derivative income within the scope of IFRS 9 comprises the sale, value of units of wholesale energy and ‘other related services and
excludes VAT. Units are based on energy volumes that can actually be sold on the wholesale market and are recorded using industry wide trading

and settlement systems. . The company also performs limited proprietary trading, the results of which are shown net within Revenue and sells . -
'wholesale energy durlng certain market windows in which the company is requrred to stand ready to sell under industry regulatlons

All revenue 'is recog_nised over time and arises. from operations within the UK.
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'14 REVENUE continued
. ‘(b) Accountlng policies
The company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promrsed goods-or services to customers in an amount that -
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

(i) Supply of wholesale electrrcrty and gas -

The company’s performance obligations are the supply of wholesale gas and/or electricity to customers These

performante obligations are both satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the ben_eflts ‘

. of the company'’s performance as it supplies wholesale gas and electricity. The customers benefit from .the company’s

. service as the service is'provided and therefore cost (an input method) is used to measure progress ‘towards complete

" satisfaction of the performance obllgatlon This is appropriate as all costs are recharged to the customers. Revenue is
therefore recognlsed as the costs are mcurred at the contracted rate. ' :

. {u) Other revenue - S

Other revenues are recognlsed based on the consideration specrfred ina contract with a customer, to the extent that it is
highly probable that a 5|gn|f|cant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur in the future.
The company recognises revenue either at a specific point in time or over a period of time based on when control is

transferred to the customer based on the performance obligations in the contract
1
(c) Contract balances -

31 December 2018 . 01 January 2018 ‘

. Note . £m . . £m
Receivables ° N ' oo : 409.8 © 4885

(i) Included within Trade and other receivables (refer to Note 6). :
(i) £0.1 million of impairment reversals were recognised durlng the year on recelvables arusmg from the company‘s contracts with customers.

15 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
(a) Staff costs ]
2018 © 2017

. . . . . “fm .. fm
Wages and salaries : : o : Lo L 56. 5.7
Social security costs h : o " 06" 0.6
Pension and other costs ) ) o - . 8.5 . . 2.2

* Total staff costs o . : ] 14.7 -7 85

+(b) Employee numbers : , s
The year end and average numbers of employees (full and part-time) employed by the company, including UK based
directors, where approprlate, were; -

Year eénd Average . Yearend . . Average

. . : 2018 - . 2018 2017 2017
Administrative staff . - } o "~ 'sg o 64 .67 . 67
Operations Lo - ‘ : 28 ' 20 21 - 22

Total ) 86 84 - 88 - 89

The year end and average numbers of employees of full-time equnvalent staff employed by the company, including UK '
based directors, were: .

5

Year end’ Average Year end Average
. . 2018 - 2018 2017 S 2017
Total - : ) ‘82 82 . .86 . - 87

43



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY MANAGEMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31.December 2018 ‘

15 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION continued

(c) Retirement benefits - .

The company's contributions payable in the year 'were £1.6 million (2017 £1.5 million). The company contnbutes to the
ScottishPower group s defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK and the contrlbutlons payable in the’
year reflect the contrlbutlons payable in respect of active participants in the group. .schemes who are employed by the
-company: Full details of these schemes are provided in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. ‘

As at 31 December 2018, the deficit in the ScottishPower group's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £512.7
miillion (2017 £564.8 million)..The employer contribution rate for these schemes in the year.ended 31 December 2018
was 45.0% to'48.0%.

. 16 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX ‘

2018 - 2017
s L £m £fm
g Property taxes~ . : ) - - 05 .. - 1.0 -
17 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PRO\_IISIONS ' )
© 2018 - - 2017
: . £m £m
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge . o 0.4 06
Intangible asset amortisation : o ' ' 08 . 08
Charges and provisions, allowances and |mpa|rment of assets . : ) 3.3 0.1
: ‘ ' 45 15
18 FINANCE INCOME . :
' 2018 2017
. . £m . fm -
Interest on bank and other deposits i : ' 0.1 " 01
Forelgn exchange gains : ' : : : " 0.4 ' 0.4
Fair value and other gains on financing derlvatlves ) : . : R 0.6 2.7
: - 1.1 ~3.2 .
19 * FINANCE COSTS *
2018 . . 2017
: £m £m
Interest on amounts due to Iberdrola group compames . o 0.2 0.4
"Foreign exchange losses : ] S - 0.4 . 0.2
Fair value and other losses on financing derivatives - - ) . ' B 07 2.9
’ ' : © 13 3.5 .
20 INCOME TAX .
© 2018 2017 -
. . £m £fm
Current tax: . . ; ’
UK Corporation tax . . ' ‘ . (1.3) 0 (2.1)
Current tax credit for the year . ' ) . (1.3) - . (2.1)
Deferred tax: ' . ' - i - . )
Origination and reversal of temporary differences . 4 © (1.0 C o (4.0)
- Impact of tax rate change ' ) - 0.1
Deferred tax credit for the year . : ) . S (1.0) (3.9)
Income tax credit for the year - ] L. ) (2.3) (6.0)
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20 INCOME TAX continued . . :
The tax credlt on loss before tax for the year varled from the standard rate of UK Corporatlon Tax as follows )
2018 2017-
. , £m £m
Corporation tax at 19.0% (2017 19.25%) (2.2) (6. 1)
Impact of tax rate change C. 01’
" Other permanent differences - (0.1) -
Income tax credit for the year . (2.3) (6.0)

Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporation Tax to 17% on 1 April 2020. This reduces the tax rates expected to apply when

temporary drfferences reverse and impacts the deferred tax charge.

21 DIVIDENDS .
’ 2018 2017 2018 2017
. .- . £ per ordinary share £ per ordinary sharé £m £m
. Interim dividend paid - . 0.40 - 20.0 -

.22 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Contractual commitments

ScottishPower manages its energy resource _requirements by integrating long-term firm, short‘term and spot market
purchases with its own generating resources (up until 31 December 2018) to manage volume and price volatility and -
maximise valué across the energy value chain. As part of its energy resource portfoluo the company is committed under

Iong term purchase contracts summansed in the table below.

' 2018 : ,
: 2024 and
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 thereafter Total
. . - £m - £m £m £m . £m £m £m
Long-term energy purchase contract c0mm|tments 3,8548 @ 7174 111.0 34 - - - 4,686.6
Other contractual commitments 163.1 -38.6 2.7 2.8 2.9 15.9 226.0
2017
o - 2023 and
2018 2019 - 2020 2021 2022 thereafter Total
. . £m fm- - £m " fm’ £m " £m " fm
" Long-term energy-purchase contract commitments 3,711.0 616.7 ° 59.9 - 4.5 - - 4,392.1
Qther contractual commitments . . 783 84.1 38.8 - 2.7 2.8 - 18.4 225.1:
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23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions and balances arrsmg in the normal course of business .
. 2018 - . 2017

" Ultimate Other Ultimate Other
parent ' Immediate  lberdrola " parent ‘Iberdrola
(iberdrola, UK parenr . parent * group (Iberdrola, ~ UK parent group
S.A) (SPL) (SPRH) companies SA) {SPL)  companies
£m £m £m £m fm. £m £m
Types of transaction ) . . . ) : ) .
Sales and rendering of services - - - 2,114.6 - - 2,284.2:
Purchases and receipt of services R T (1.0 - - (475.3) . (0.1) (1.1) (594.4)
Net transfer of intangible assets - | . - - - . 56 . - - -
Net transfer of Property, plant and equipment . - - - 9.6 - . - o
Transfer of provisions ) ] co - L - ©(1.2) ’ - - ) -
Transfer of inventories . .. ’ - : - - 11.3 BRI - -
Transfer of trade and other payables ) . - - ) - (0:1) . - T
" Transfer of deferred tax liability - - - (0.9) - - -
Emissions allowances sold ‘ ' - - ~ .- 27.6 - - 13.4
Interest costs : C- . {0.2) - T - - (04) - -
Net gains/(losses) on financing derivatives . .{0.2) 01 . - - - (0.1) -
Changes in the value of cash flow hedge reserve ' .- - B - = (0.1) ' -
Dividends paid - - *{20.0) - - - -~
- ECLs recognised in respect of : :
Trade and other receivables . - - - - : 0.5 S - - . -
Balances outstanding ] . ' ’ :
Trade and other receivables = ' S - - i - 413.1 - - 514.1 |
-Derivative financial assets . - 0.1 . - 07 ° _ 0.1 . 1.8
Loans payable ' . - (108.7) - . _ (44.6) -
Trade and other payables : ' - - - .- (65.4) - - (11)  (162.4)
Interest payable : - ’ {0.2) - - ’ - (0.4) . -
.Derivative financial liabilities " - : : - - - (1.6) L - .- (0.4)
ECLs on ) : ’ . ) .
Trade and other receivables ) - ) - - (0.3) - - -

(i) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received.
(i) ~ During the year ended 31 December 2018, Scottish Power UK pic (“SPUK") made penston contributions of £1.6 million (2017 £1.5 million) on
behalf of the company .

~ (b) Remuneration of key management personnel :

The femuneration of the key management personnel of the company is set out below. As all of the key management
personnel aré remunerated for their work for the SPRH group, it hasnot been possible to apportion the remuneration
~speC|f|caIly in respect of services to this company. Of the ten key management personnel (2017 ten) four (2017 three)
were remunerated directly by the company and this is included within staff.costs in Note 15(a) The remaining key
management personnel were remunerated by other SPRH companies |n both years.

. : . 2018 2017

N o £m . £m

Short-term employee benefits - : : 1,089 - 1,077 -
Post-employment benefits S o R 125 . 199
Termination benefits = - ) ) o . . 501 . ' -
Share-based payments - ) . ) 499 518

2,174, - . 1,794

{c) Drrectors remuneration : . ]
'The remuneration of.the directors of the company is set out overleaf. As all of the directors are: remunerated for thelr
work for the SPRH group, it has not been possible to apportion the’ remuneration specifically in respect of services to this
" company. Of the five directors (2017 six) three (2017 three) were remunerated directly by the company and this is
included within staff costs in Note 15(a). The remaining dlrectors were remunerated by other SPRH group companles in
both years. '
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23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

(c) Directors' remuneration continued - o s . . e D
' o - ‘ o I 2018 2017
Executive directors’ . : ' ' ‘ fm . Em
Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services . 358 . 300
Aggregate compensation for loss of office ~ = 501 -
Number of directors who exercised share options : ’ 2 : 2
Number of directors who. received shares under a long-term mcentlve scheme 1 i
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme 3 2
. . ] . 2018 - - 2017
Highest paid director. ' E : / ' £m ' £m
. Aggregate remuneration . : E N 281 - 244
~ Accrued pension benefits e ©-105 : 103

(i)  Thehighest paid director received shares under a long:term share incentive scheme in both years.
(i}  The highest paid director exercised share options during both years.

'(d) Ultlmate parent company and immediate parent company
The immediate parent company is SPRH. The regrstered office of SPRH is 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow G2 5AD.

. The directors regard Iberdrola, S.A. as the ultimate- parent company, WhICh is-also the parent company of the largest
group in which: the results of the company are consolidated. The parent company of the smallest group in which the
results of the ‘company are consolidated is ScottishPower UK plc {“SPUK”). .

Coples of the consohdated Accounts of Iberdrola S.A. may be obtained from iberdrola, S.A., at |ts registered office, Torre .
Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi S, 48009, Bllbao Spain. Copies of the consolldated Accounts of SPUK may- be obtained from
ScottlshPower UK plc, at its registered office, 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, GZ SAD. .

The company has no other related undertakmgs in addition to the parent unde‘rtakmgs disclosed above.

24 AUDITOR REMUNERATION - - .
2018 2017

- £m © £m
Audit of the company's annual Accounts L 0.2 -~ 0.2

KPMG LLP were re-appointed auditor of the company during 2018.

25 GOING CONCERN
The company’s business activities together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position are set
out in the Strategic Report on pages1to4.

The company. has recorded a loss after tax in both the current and previous financial year and.the company’s balance
sheet shows that it 'has net current assets of £148.4 mllllon and net assets of £182 9 million at its most recent balance

. sheet date.

The company is ultimately owned by Iberdrola, S.A. and it participates in the Iberdrola group’s centralised treasury
arrangements and so shares banking facilities with its parent companies and fellow subsidiaries. As a consequence, the
company depends, in part, on the ability of the Iberdrola group to continue as a going concern. The directors have
.considered the company’s funding relationship with Iberdrola to date and have considered available relevant
- information relating to the Iberdrola’s abilitv to continue as a going concern. In addition, the directors have no reason to
believe that the Iberdrola group does not have the ability to and will not continue to fund the company, should it
become necessary, to enable it to continue in operatlonal existence. -

On the basis of these considerations, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the. company will be able to
" continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Therefore, they adopt the going concern basrs of accounting
in preparing the Accounts :
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